
 

 
Mark Williams, Chief Executive 

Agenda for meeting of the Licensing and 

Enforcement Sub Committee 
Wednesday, 11th August, 2021, 9.30 am 
 
Members of Licensing and Enforcement Sub Committee 

 

Councillors  J Whibley (Chair) 
K Bloxham (Vice-Chair) 

A Dent  

 

Venue: Online via the Zoom app 

 
Contact: Sarah Jenkins 01395 517406;   Email 

sjenkins@eastdevon.gov.uk 

(or group number 01395 517546) 

Tuesday, 3 August 2021 
 
Important - this meeting will be conducted online and recorded by Zoom only. 

Please do not attend Blackdown House.  
Members are asked to follow the Protocol for Remote Meetings  

 

This meeting is being recorded by EDDC for subsequent publication on the Council’s 
website and will be streamed live to the Council’s Youtube Channel at 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmNHQruge3LVI4hcgRnbwBw 
 

 
1 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 7 July 2021  (Pages 3 - 7) 

2 Apologies   

3 Declarations of interest   

 Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making 
declarations of interest 

 

4 Matters of urgency   

 Information on matters of urgency is available online 
 

5 Confidential/exempt items   

 To agree any items to be dealt with after the public (including the Press) have 

been excluded. There are no items which officers recommend should be dealt 
with in this way. 

 

6 Determination of an application for the grant of a premises licence to allow the 
provision of regulated entertainment, provision of late night refreshment and the 

sale of alcohol for consumption ON the premises at ‘Hawkfest’, Hills Farm, 
Whitford Road, Kilmington, EX13 7NS. The application is to cover the period of 
26 – 30 August 2021  (Pages 8 - 119) 

 

East Devon District Council 
Blackdown House 

Border Road 

Heathpark Industrial Estate 
Honiton 

EX14 1EJ 

DX 48808 HONITON 

Tel: 01404 515616 

www.eastdevon.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

page 1

http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/protocol-for-virtual-meetings
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmNHQruge3LVI4hcgRnbwBw
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillor-conduct/councillor-reminder-for-declaring-interests/
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/matters-of-urgency/


 
 
Decision making and equalities 

 

For a copy of this agenda in large print, please contact the Democratic 
Services Team on 01395 517546 

 

page 2

http://new.eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/decision-making-and-equalities-duties/


EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Minutes of the meeting of Licensing and Enforcement Sub Committee held 

Online via the Zoom app on 7 July 2021 

 
Attendance list at end of document 

The meeting started at 9.30 am and ended at 11.22 am 
 

 
6    Minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 June 2021  

 

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 June 2021 were agreed as a correct 

record. 
 

7    Declarations of interest  

 

Minute number 10. Determination of an application for the grant of a new premises 

licence to authorise the sale of alcohol for consumption ON the premises and the playing 
of recorded music (Indoors and Outdoors) at Hangtime Café, Unit 6-7 Sideshore, 

Queen’s Drive, Exmouth EX8 2GD. 
 
Councillor Joe Whibley, Personal, Member is a Member of Exmouth Town Council.  The 

application site is not in the Member's ward. 
 

8    Matters of urgency  

 

There were no matters of urgency. 
 

9    Confidential/exempt items  

 

There were no confidential / exempt items. 

 
10    Determination of an application for the grant of a new premises 

licence to authorise the sale of alcohol for consumption ON the 

premises and the playing of recorded music (Indoors and Outdoors) 

at Hangtime Café, Unit 6-7 Sideshore, Queen’s Drive, Exmouth EX8 

2GD  

 

The Sub Committee considered the application for the grant of a new premises licence to 

authorise the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises at Hangtime Café, unit 6 & 
7 Sideshore, Queen’s Drive, Exmouth EX8 2GD.  The meeting was a hearing to consider 
the application for a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
The Chair introduced the members of the Sub Committee and the East Devon District 

Council officers present. 
 
The applicant, present and entitled to make representations, was Megan Barnett. 

 
The interested parties, present and entitled to make representations were Martin Heslop, 

Jenny Heslop, Mary Nash, Gina Hanson, Charles Salter, Jane Ashton, Carol Metcalfe, 
Ron Metcalfe and Peter Tweedie. 
 

page 3

Agenda Item 1



Licensing and Enforcement Sub Committee 7 July 2021 
 

Regarding representations from responsible authorities, the Chair advised that Devon 
and Cornwall Police had reached an agreed position with the applicant.  As a result, the 

applicant had amended the application so that the licence would contain appropriate 
conditions and, if granted, would be for sales of alcohol for consumption ON the 
premises only. 

 
The Sub Committee’s legal advisor, Giles Salter, outlined the procedure for the meeting.   

 
The Licensing Officer, Steve Saunders, outlined the application and highlighted the plan 
of the premises showing the proposed licensed area which includes the café and the 

adjoining outside area as defined on the plan.  The conditions offered by the applicant 
were within the operating schedule set out in Appendix C of the report, with further 

conditions which had been agreed subsequently set out in Appendix F. 
 
In total, 29 representations had been received; the representation from the Police was 

shown in Appendix F, one representation was in support of the application with a further 
27 representations from local residents and District and Town Councillors which were in 

objection. 
 
By way of formal mediation, a letter was sent to those who had submitted a 

representation which explained the agreement that had been reached with the Police.  
Five representations were subsequently withdrawn leaving 23 outstanding and to be 

considered by the Sub Committee at the meeting.  All representations and key points in 
response to the notice of hearing were set out in the appendices to the report. 
 

The applicant, Megan Barnett, addressed the Sub Committee and made the following 
points: 

 The applicant and her partner had grown up in Exmouth and were proud to be 
known as the friendly café on the seafront and a small business run by local 
people 

 The decision to apply for an alcohol licence was both the applicant’s intention from 
the start of the business and was demand led by customers of the café 

 It was hoped that the café’s offering would complement the many and well known 
water sports events on Exmouth seafront 

 No objections had been made by responsible authorities other than the agreed 
position which had been reached with the Police with regard to the consumption of 
alcohol on the premises only 

 The application was more conservative than licences which had been granted to 
other nearby premises 

 Various steps would be taken to promote the four licensing objectives; a 
comprehensive digital colour CCTV system would be installed to the satisfaction 

of the Police, only reusable branded plastic cups would be used, with no single 
use plastic or glass, low volume background music would be limited to the unit 
and the immediate seating area, the café had access to the facilities at the nearby 

Edge premises, regulated sale of alcohol, proof of age policies together with a 
refusals register would ensure that the café did not contribute to underage 

drinking on the seafront 

 The applicant’s intention was to improve the offering for the water sports 
community, the town and the café’s customers on Exmouth seafront. 

 
The applicant responded to questions from the Sub Committee and made the following 

points: 

page 4



Licensing and Enforcement Sub Committee 7 July 2021 
 

 The applicant did not want to cause any disturbance and would welcome a visit 
and advice from Environmental Health regarding noise levels from the premises 

 The exact position of seating within the proposed licensed area had not yet been 
defined 

 Should the licence be granted, the applicant would discuss with the General 
Manager of Sideshore the installation of a physical demarcation on the ground in 
order to easily identify the licensed area 

 Café staff would not be outside all of the time, but regularly check the area and 
would deal with inappropriate behaviour by customers by asking them to leave 

 The use of reusable branded plastic cups would enable alcoholic beverages to be 
differentiated from coffee which customers are able to consume off the premises 

 The nearby toilet facilities are owned by Edge and should the licence be granted, 
patrons would be able to use the facilities by way of an agreed arrangement with 
Edge. 

 
Interested parties put questions to the applicant who responded as follows: 

 Access to the facilities at Edge is by way of code access rather than a key 

 It is not the applicant’s intention for Hangtime to become a public house, but 

rather to sell premium drinks such as local gin and craft beer. 
 
Regarding the provision of toilet facilities, the legal advisor to the Sub Committee advised 

that there was no requirement to provide facilities under the Licensing Act and that this 
issue would not need to be considered by the Sub Committee if members were content 

that the application meets the four licensing objectives. 
 
Further questions from interested parties were responded to by the applicant as follows: 

 Use of the toilet facilities at Edge had not yet been approved by Sideshore, 
however the facilities are leased by Edge Watersports and as such are its 

responsibility 

 The Edge facilities are not for use by the general public although customers of 

Hangtime could access the facilities using the code and with permission from 
Hangtime staff 

 

The interested parties addressed the Sub Committee and the following points were 
highlighted: 

 The detailed objections of the interested parties are set out in Appendix G and 
make reference to the Licensing Policy 2021 

 If granted the application would provide a full on licence which would effectively 

provide a public house with a small outside seating area 

 The type of premises are inappropriate by reason of size and without sufficient 

measures to promote the licensing objectives 

 The absence of toilet facilities is relevant when considering the suitability of the 

premises under the licensing objectives 

 The nature of the location gives rise to concern as it is next to a dangerous 

section of beach  

 The premises is near a quiet residential area which will be adversely affected 

 There is the potential for crime and disorder 

 There is concern regarding potential for public nuisance from the playing of 
recorded music and an environmental health assessment should be carried out 

prior to any grant of licence 

 Children will be exposed to increased dangers arising from the consumption of 

alcohol 

page 5



Licensing and Enforcement Sub Committee 7 July 2021 
 

 There is a saturation of similar premises in close proximity 

 The amenity of local residents would be adversely impacted 

 It is unclear how the outside area is to be delineated and how the applicant is to 
manage behaviour of those in the area 

 The cumulative impact with other licensed premises in the area increases the risk 
of anti-social behaviour and disorder 

 CCTV would not be sufficient to deal with the matters of concern raised by 
objectors 

 The area was intended to be for public access and it is unclear how the applicant 

would exclude members of the public from the site 

 The deficiencies in the application indicate that it should be rejected by the Sub 

Committee. 
 

The legal advisor to the Sub Committee advised that Environmental Health has powers 
to take action following any complaints from the public arising in connection with the 
premises.  As this is a new premises which has not been tested, the Sub Committee 

would have to consider the risk of the proposed operation. 
 

Further concerns were raised by the interested parties as follows: 

 It is essential to know how the tables would fit within the proposed licensed area 

 It would be difficult for the applicant to monitor which patrons are leaving the 

premises with coffee and which with alcohol 

 Completing the refusals register would take considerable time and there was 

concern as to whether sufficient café staff would be available to manage this and 
the issue of patrolling the outside area 

 The Sub Committee needs to take into account the unintended consequences of 
how customers might behave and the issue of enforcement is of real concern to 
local residents, particularly regarding ensuring customers stay on site to consume 

alcohol 

 Many licensed premises employ professional door staff to manage public 

nuisance and disorder 
 
The applicant advised that currently there are five members of staff at weekends.  Going 

forwards, it was uncertain how many members of staff would be required, but there 
would be two staff members with regard to the above points raised by interested parties. 

 
The number of tables to be provided is dependent on the size of the outside area and 
had not yet been determined.  However, the applicant wanted to provide sufficient space 

around the tables to avoid congestion and to provide a pleasant experience for 
customers.  The applicant agreed to provide a plan with the proposed number of tables 

and the numbers seated at each. 
 
In response to a question from the legal advisor, the applicant confirmed that the side 

hatch would not be used for serving customers, but could be used for monitoring that 
section of the outside area.  The applicant anticipated a maximum number of 40 

customers, but at this stage, the exact number was uncertain, but would be limited by the 
seating capacity. 
 

The applicant also confirmed that, should the licence be granted, once the sound 
speakers are in place, she would contact Environmental Health for advice and a sound 

level assessment. 
 

page 6



Licensing and Enforcement Sub Committee 7 July 2021 
 

The applicant also advised that there is a public pathway outside of the designated 
seating area for the café.  

 
In response to a question from an interested party regarding making patrons of Hangtime 
aware of the availability of toilet facilities, the applicant confirmed that signage would be 

preferable as a means of advising customers.  Signage would also be used to clarify that 
alcohol must be consumed on site and while patrons are seated. 

 
In order to clarify the designated seating area included in the area for which the licence 
was sought in relation to the public path running down the side of the café, the Sub 

Committee considered photographs provided in Appendix G1.  The applicant confirmed 
that no seating would be placed on the public thoroughfare which is outside of the café’s 

designated area.   
 
In her final statement, the applicant thanked everyone for attending and advised that she 

and her partner are local business owners looking to contribute positively to the town.   
 

The Chair thanked those present for taking part and advised that all parties would be 
notified in writing of the Sub Committee’s decision with five working days. 
 

 
 

 

Attendance List 

Councillors present: 

K Bloxham (Vice-Chair) 
A Dent 

J Whibley (Chair) 
 
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting) 

None 
 
Officers in attendance: 

Giles Salter, Solicitor 

Stephen Saunders, Licensing Manager 
Sarah Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer 
Alethea Thompson, Democratic Services Officer 

Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
Emily Westlake, Licensing Officer 

 
Councillor apologies: 

None 

 
 
 

 
 

Chair   Date:  

 

page 7



Report to: Licensing and Enforcement Sub Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 11the August 2021 

Document classification: Part A Public Document 

Exemption applied: None 

Review date for release N/A 

 

Application for the grant of a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 

Report summary: 
The report summarises an application for the grant of a time limited premises licence to be 
considered by the sub-committee under the Licensing Act 2003. 

Is the proposed decision in accordance with: 

Budget    Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Policy Framework  Yes ☒ No ☐  

Recommendation: 
That members consider an application for the grant of a premises licence to allow the provision of 
regulated entertainment, provision of late night refreshment and the sale of alcohol for consumption 
ON the premises at ‘Hawkfest’, Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, EX13 7NS. The application 
is to cover the period of 26 – 30 August 2021.   

Reason for recommendation: 
To comply with statutory processes. 

Officer: Licensing Manager Steve Saunders, ssaunders@eastdevon.gov.uk, 01404 515616 

  

Portfolio(s) (check which apply): 
☐ Climate Action and Emergencies 
☒ Coast, Country and Environment 
☐ Council and Corporate Co-ordination 
☐ Culture, Tourism, Leisure and Sport 
☐ Democracy and Transparency 
☐ Economy and Assets 
☐ Finance 
☐ Strategic Planning 
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities 

Equalities impact Low Impact 

If choosing High or Medium level outline the equality considerations here, which should include 
any particular adverse impact on people with protected characteristics and actions to mitigate 
these.  Link to an equalities impact assessment form using the equalities form template. 

Climate change Low Impact 

Risk: Low Risk; Click here to enter text on risk considerations relating to your report. 

Links to background information    

EDDC Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026  

page 8

Agenda Item 6



Licensing Act 2003 Guidance issued under Section 182  

APPENDIX A – Licensing application 

APPENDIX B – Plans of premises 

APPENDIX C – Conditions offered in Operating Schedule 

APPENDIX D – Event Management Plan  

APPENDIX E – Location maps and photographs 

APPENDIX F – Representations list 

APPENDIX G – Responses to Notice of Hearing 

APPENDIX G1 – Additional Document A35 Accident Data 

APPENDIX G2 – Additional Document A35 Average Daily Traffic 

APPENDIX H – Mediation letter sent to all objectors 

 

Link to Council Plan:  

Priorities (check which apply) 

☐ Outstanding Place and Environment  
☐ Outstanding Homes and Communities 
☐ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity 
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services 
 
 

Report in full 

1 Description of Application 

1.1 An application has been received from Mr Steve Littley for the grant of a new (time limited) 
premises licence at Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, East Devon, EX13 7NS 

 
1.2 The application is provided at APPENDIX A. 
 
1.3 The proposed timings and licensable activities applied for are as follows:  
 
         Provision of live music (indoors) Friday    10.00 - 24.00 
 

Saturday    00.00 – 02.00 
Saturday   10.00 – 24.00 
 
Sunday    00:00 - 02:00 
Sunday    10.00 – 24.00 
 
Monday    00.00 – 02.00 
 
 

         Provision of recorded music   Friday     10.00 - 24.00 
         (indoors) 

Saturday     00.00 – 02.00 
Saturday    10.00 – 24.00 
 
Sunday     00:00 - 02:00 
Sunday    10.00 – 24.00 

page 9



 
Monday    00.00 – 02.00 

 
Late Night Refreshment    Friday     23.00 - 24.00 
(indoors & outdoors)                                            

 
Saturday     00.00 – 02.00 
Saturday    00.00 – 24.00 
 
Sunday    00:00 - 02:00 
Sunday    23.00 – 24.00 

 
     Monday    00.00 – 02.00 
 
Sale of Alcohol    Thursday    12.00 – 24.00 
(On) 

Friday     10.00 - 24.00 
 

Saturday      00.00 – 02.00 
Saturday    10.00 – 24.00 
 
Sunday     00:00 - 02:00 
Sunday     10.00 – 24.00 
 
Monday     00.00 – 02.00 

 
  
Opening hours    Thursday    12.00 – 24.00 
 

Friday     10.00 - 24.00 
 

Saturday      00.00 – 02.00 
Saturday     10.00 – 24.00 
 
Sunday     00:00 - 02:00 
Sunday     10.00 – 24.00 
 
Monday     00.00 – 02.00  

     
 
1.4 The application seeks to licence indoor and outdoor areas of Hills Farm, Whitford Road, 

Kilmington. This is to provide licensable activities at an event known as Hawkfest for up to 
1000 people. The event is proposed to run from 26 – 30 August 2021. 

  
1.5 A plan of the site (with the area for licensable activities marked in red) along with additional 

plans and photos detailing the location of the stage, bar, additional non licensable activities 
and camping were submitted in support of the application, provided at APPENDIX B.  

 
1.6    The conditions offered by the applicant in the operating schedule submitted with the application 

are attached at APPENDIX C.   
 
1.7 The event will operate in accordance with an Event Management Plan (Version 3), also   

containing risk assessment documents, noise management and drugs policy at APPENDIX D.  
 

page 10



1.8 There is a premises licence for the Cranberries Function Suite on the site (PLWA0655) that 
provides licensable activities with different timings, with Late Night Refreshment indoors and 
with the licence restricted to a limit of 300 persons attending the function suite.   

  
 
2 Statutory Bodies’ Response  
 
2.1 Devon & Cornwall Police 

No representations have been received. Police licensing engaged with the applicant who 
agreed to increase the security staff (SIA) to 8 and incorporating a Drugs Policy that is included 
in Appendix D. 
 

2.2 Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service 
No representations have been received. 

 
2.3 Area Child Protection Committee and Local Safeguarding Children Board 

No representations have been received. 
 

2.4 Devon Trading Standards 
 No representations have been received. 
 
2.5 East Devon District Council, Environmental Health Service 

No representations have been received after Environmental Health staff had considered the 
EMP and sound management plan at Appendix D. 
  

2.6 East Devon District Council, Planning & Countryside Service 
 No representations have been received. 
 
2.7 Primary Care Trust 

No representations have been received. 
 

2.8 Home Office 
No representations have been received. 
 
 
 

3 Representations and Responses to Notices of Hearing 
 

3.1 A representation has been received from Kilmington Parish Council. This is attached at 
APPENDIX F. The representation relates to the prevention of public nuisance licensing 
objective.  

 
3.2 Representations have been received from six local residents. These are attached at 

APPENDIX F.  
 
3.3 Details of the responses to the statutory Notice of Hearing are attached at APPENDIX G.   
 

3.4 In the Response to Notice of Hearing, Kilmington Parish Council submitted additional 
documents regarding Accident Data on the A35 attached at APPENDIX G1 and Average Daily 
Traffic on the A35 attached at APPENDIX G2.  

 

4 Proposed Operating Schedule and Mediation 
 
4.1 The conditions offered by the applicant in the operating schedule are attached at  

page 11



 APPENDIX C. 
 
4.2 Informal mediation has taken place by way of a letter prepared by the applicant being sent out 

by Licensing, with the applicant’s approval with the Notice of Hearing letter to residential 
objectors.  A copy of this letter is attached at APPENDIX H.   

 
4.3 All responses have been received to Notice of Hearing letters along with the mediation letter. 

Each representation remains in being with the need for this hearing remaining. 
 
 

5 Relevant Licensing Policy Considerations  

Licensing Objectives 
5.1 Section 3.1.1 of the Policy states:  ‘The Licensing Authority has a duty under the Act to carry 

out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives.’   
These are:- 
 The prevention of crime and disorder 
 Public safety 
 The prevention of public nuisance 
 The protection of children from harm 

 
5.2 Section 3.1.2 of the policy states: These objectives are the only matters to be taken into 

account in determining the application and any conditions attached must be appropriate in 
achieving the licensing objectives.  

 
5.3 Section 3.1.3 of the Policy states:  A licence will only be granted where the Licensing Authority 

is satisfied that these objectives have been met.  
 

Conditions 
5.4 Section 6 of the policy sets out what the Sub Committee should consider before imposing 

conditions on a licence. 
  
5.5 Section 6.3 of the policy states:  Generally it is recognised that the licensing function is not to 

be seen as a mechanism for the general control of anti-social behaviour by individuals/groups 
once they are beyond the direct control of the licence holder of any premises concerned.  But 
the Licensing Authority’s discretion may be engaged if relevant representations are made and 
there is an evidential link between the disturbance and the licensed venue. 

 
Licensing Hours 

5.6 Section 10.1 of the Policy states:  The licensing authority will deal with the issue of licensing 
hours on the individual merits of each application.  When the Authority’s discretion is engaged 
consideration will be given to the individual merits of an application but the presumption will be 
to grant the hours requested unless there are objections to those hours raised by Responsible 
Authorities or any other person on the basis of the licensing objectives.  However, when issuing 
a licence with hours beyond midnight higher standards of control will generally need to be 
included in operating schedules to promote the licensing objectives especially for premises 
which are situated near residential areas.   

 
5.7 Section 10.4 of the Policy states:  The terminal hours will normally be approved where the 

applicant can show that the proposal would not adversely affect the licensing objectives unless, 
after hearing relevant representation the licensing authority believe it necessary, proportionate 
and reasonable to restrict the hours required. 

 
 

 
page 12



Nuisance 
5.8 Section 16.1 of the Policy states:  To promote the licensing objectives, applicants for licences 

for licensable activities will be required to demonstrate the measures they have in place for the 
prevention of public nuisance. The impact of the licensable activities on people living in the 
vicinity should not be disproportionate or unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise 
nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter. The prevention of public nuisance can 
include low-level nuisance affecting a few people living locally as well as a major disturbance 
affecting the whole community. It may also include the prevention of the reduction of the living 
and working amenity and environment of interested parties. 

 
Capacity 

5.9 Section 17.1 of the Policy states:  Where it is considered necessary to control the maximum 
numbers of persons attending premises for the purpose of preventing crime and disorder or 
for public safety the licensing authority will expect this to be addressed in the operating 
schedule. The licensing authority, if relevant representations are made and only then if such 
conditions are deemed necessary, proportionate and reasonable, may impose a condition 
stipulating a maximum number of persons permitted to attend premises where it considers it 
necessary to prevent crime and disorder or for public safety purposes. 

 
5.10 The Guidance issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003 states:  

The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been engaged 
following receipt of relevant representations and it has been satisfied at a hearing of the 
necessity to impose conditions. It may then only impose conditions that are appropriate to 
promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. Such conditions must also be expressed 
in unequivocal and unambiguous terms to avoid legal dispute. 

 
It is perfectly possible that in certain cases, because the test is one of appropriate, where there 
are other legislative provisions which are relevant and must be observed by the applicant, no 
additional conditions at all are needed to promote the licensing objectives.  

 
The Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, style, characteristics 
and activities taking place at the premises concerned.   

 
Licensing authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only those 
which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, which means that they must 
not go further than what is needed for that purpose.  

 
Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are appropriate and proportionate 
for the promotion for the licensing objectives. If other existing law already places certain 
statutory responsibilities on an employer or operator of premises, it cannot be appropriate to 
impose the same or similar duties.  
 

6. Observations  
 
6.1 Following the implementation of the first set of regulations under the Police Reform and Social 

Responsibility Act on 25 April 2012 a new provision relating to the ‘test’ that Licensing 
Committees should consider when deciding on licensing applications was introduced.  The 
evidential level for Licensing Committees has been lowered so that the test now is that their 
decisions need only be ‘appropriate’ and no longer ‘necessary’.   

 
6.2 The application being considered is for the grant of a Premises Licence to allow: 
 

 Late night refreshment (indoors & outdoors) 
 Sale of alcohol for consumption ON the premises 
 Regulated Entertainment (live & recorded music) 

page 13



 
6.3 The Hawkfest event has not previously occurred at this location and it is proposed there will 

be 500 to 1000 people, subject to grant of the licence. 
 
6.4 All objectors have responded to the notice of hearing with each resident indicating that they 

will not be attending the hearing to address the committee. All have nominated Peter Ball, 
Kilmington Parish Councillor to represent them. Details of the response to notice of hearing 
and additional comments in support of the representations are attached at APPENDIX G. 

 
6.5 In the Response to Notice of Hearing the applicant has responded by outlining the key points 

are detailed in the licence application. 
  
6.6 Mr Belford Littley is nominated as the Designated Premises Supervisor. Mr Littley holds a 

Personal Licence, issued by Est Devon District Council in 2011. 
 
6.7 The Sub Committee will now need to consider whether to grant this application as it stands or 

in the light of the representations to refuse the application or grant it in a different form.   
 
Legal Advice  
1. As relevant representations have been made in respect of the application, this hearing must 

be held.  (Relevant representations are about the likely effect of the grant of the application on 
the promotion of the licensing objectives, by any person, bodies representing them or 
responsible authorities).  The sub-committee must disregard any information or evidence not 
relevant to the licensing objectives. 

 
2. The sub-committee must consider this application in accordance with Section 4 of the 

Licensing Act 2003, which requires that licensing functions must be carried out with a view to 
promoting the four licensing objectives.  The licensing authority must also have regard to its 
own licensing policy and the Secretary of State’s guidance, but may depart from both if it has 
good reason to do so.  Those reasons should be stated. 

 
3. Section 18 of the Act requires the licensing authority to grant a premises licence unless it 

considers additional steps are needed for the promotion of the licensing objectives having 
regard to any relevant representations. 

  
 The steps are: 
 (a) to grant the licence subject to: 
 (i) the conditions in the operating schedule modified to such   extent as members 

consider necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and 
  (ii)  any condition which must under sections 19, 20 or 21 be included in the 

licence; 
(b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the 

application relates 
(c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor 
(d) to reject the application. 

 
 The conditions of the licence are modified if any are altered or omitted or any new condition is 

added.  Different conditions may be applied to different parts of the premises, and to different 
licensable activities.  The sub-committee must give its reasons for its decision to take any of 
these steps.  Similarly, if any part of an application is rejected, the sub-committee must give its 
reasons. 

 
4. The Act requires mandatory conditions to be imposed where supplying alcohol or exhibiting 

films are approved as licensed activities. It also requires a mandatory condition to be imposed 

page 14



where door supervisors or other individuals carrying out security activities are conditions on 
the licence. 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

  

(a) Section 19 - Mandatory conditions relating to the supply of alcohol  

1. (a) There shall be no sale or supply of alcohol when there is no designated 
premises supervisor in respect of this premises licence or at a time when the 
said premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or when his/her 
licence is suspended.   

(b) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or 
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 

Source: Section 19 Licensing Act 2003 

2. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not 
carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to 
the premises. 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose 
of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises - 

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 
require or encourage, individuals to- 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply 
alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a 
fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining 
a licensing objective. 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a 
period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
undermining a licensing objective. 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or 
flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be 
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or 
to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner. 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another 
(other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance 
by reason of a disability). 

3. The responsible person shall ensure that free potable water is provided on 
request to customers where it is reasonably available. 

4. (1) The premises licence holder shall ensure that an age verification policy 
applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance 
with the age verification policy. 

page 15



(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to 
be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 
bearing their photograph, date of birth and either – 

(a) a holographic mark, or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

5. The responsible person must ensure that- 

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 
having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures- 

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 
which is available to customers on the premises and 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity 
of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

6. (1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the 
permitted price. 

(2) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 7(1) — 

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties 

Act 1979; 

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula — 

P = D + (D×V) 

where— 

(i) P is the permitted price, 

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 
the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the 
alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date of 
the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which 
there is in force a premises licence— 

(i) the holder of the premises licence, 

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 
licence, or 

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of 
alcohol under such a licence; 

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which 
there is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of 

page 16



the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with 
the Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

  (3) Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would 
(apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price 
given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by 
that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 (4) (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by 
Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be 
different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as 
a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales 
or supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 
14 days beginning on the second day. 

Source: Section 19A Licensing Act 2003 

 
5. The sub-committee will need to consider the hours of operation proposed in relation to the 

licensable activities in the light of the promotion of the licensing objectives, the effectiveness 
of the operating schedule proposed by the applicant, the representations received, the location 
of the premises in relation to residential and other commercial properties including other 
licensed premises, the history of the management of the premises and how it is proposed to 
be run in the future, the evidence produced of any problems in the past, and the likely impact 
of any extension of hours and activities.  These issues, and any other relevant ones, may be 
explored at the hearing.  

 
6. Human Rights Act 1998 
6.1 The sub-committee must also have regard to the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 

when determining this application.   The 1998 Act made the European Convention of Human 
Rights directly enforceable in British courts. The relevant provisions are Article 6 (right to a fair 
trial), Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life), Article 11 (freedom of association) 
and Article 1 of the First Protocol (right to peaceful enjoyment of one’s possessions).  These 
provisions are explained below.  Essentially, they require the sub-committee to identify 
correctly the competing interests, give each appropriate weight in the circumstances of the 
case, and balance them against each other in order to arrive at a fair and reasonable decision. 

 
6.2 Under Article 6, “everyone is entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by 

an independent and impartial tribunal established by law”.  The procedures established by this 
Council for hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 are compliant with Article 6. 

 
6.3 Under Article 8, “everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and 

his correspondence”.  This right may not be interfered with except in accordance with the law 
and as may be “necessary in a democratic society in the interests of national security, public 
safety or the economic well-being of the country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the 
protection of health or morals, or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of others”.  In 
Licensing Act cases this means that the sub-committee must have regard to the effect of its 
decisions on local residents, and balance their interests against those of the public at large 
(e.g. the customers of the premises under consideration) and the people operating the 
business from the premises. 

 
6.4 Under Article 11, “everyone has the right to freedom of peaceful assembly and to freedom of 

association with others” except where it is lawful to restrict that freedom in the interests of 
national security or public safety, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of 

page 17



health or morals or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of others”. In Licensing Act 
cases this means, for example, that the sub-committee is entitled to impose conditions to 
ensure that patrons of licensed premises do not unreasonably disturb others living or working 
nearby.  Again, the sub-committee should balance the competing interests. 

 
6.5 Article 1 of the First Protocol (that is, the first amendment to the Convention) says that every 

natural or legal person (meaning a human being or a company) is entitled to peaceful 
enjoyment of his possessions, except where the law provides for restrictions on that right in 
the public interest.  This means, for example, that it is compliant with the Convention to impose 
restrictions, such as those provided in the Licensing Act 2003, upon business premises where 
it is in the public interest to do so.  On the other hand the same applies to the owners and 
occupiers of neighbouring premises. 

 
7. Appeals 
 If the sub-committee imposes conditions on the licence with which the applicant disagrees, or 

modifies the licensable activities permitted or refuses to specify a person a designated 
premises supervisor, he or she may appeal within 21 days of notification of the decision to the 
Magistrates’ Court.  The applicant may also appeal if an application for a premises licence is 
rejected. Those making relevant representations may appeal if they believe that the licence 
should not have been granted, or that, when granting the licence, the licensing authority ought 
to have imposed different or additional conditions or excluded a licensable activity or refused 
to specify a persona as designated premises supervisor.  The magistrates’ court may dismiss 
the appeal, or substitute its own decision, or send back the case to the licensing authority with 
directions as to how the case is to be dealt with.  The magistrates’ court may make any costs 
order it thinks fit. 

 
8. Review Provisions 

 If extended hours/licensable activities are granted, the Licensing Act contains review 
provisions which enable any person, bodies representing them or any of the responsible 
authorities to apply to this licensing authority for a review of the licence.   A hearing follows 
which enables the sub-committee to use the normal powers at a hearing (set out above) but 
also to suspend the licence for a period of up to three months or to revoke it. 

 
9. Police Closure 
 A senior police officer may close any premises for 24 hours (this can be extended) where s/he 

reasonably believes there is or is likely imminently to be disorder on, or in or in the vicinity of 
the premises and their closure is necessary in the interests of public safety.  Closure can also 
be affected if public nuisance is being caused by noise coming from the premises and closure 
of the premises is necessary to prevent that nuisance 

 
10. Surveillance Camera Code of Guidance-June 2013 

Where a relevant authority has licensing functions and considers the use of surveillance 
camera systems as part of the conditions attached to a licence or certificate, it must in particular 
have regard to guiding principle one in this code. Any proposed imposition of a blanket 
requirement to attach surveillance camera conditions as part of the conditions attached to a 
licence or certificate is likely to give rise to concerns about the proportionality of such an 
approach and will require an appropriately strong justification and must be kept under regular 
review.  Applications in relation to licensed premises must take into account the circumstances 
surrounding that application and whether a requirement to have a surveillance camera system 
is appropriate in that particular case. For example, it is unlikely that a trouble-free community 
pub would present a pressing need such that a surveillance camera condition would be 
justified. In such circumstances where a licence or certificate is granted subject to surveillance 
camera system conditions, the consideration of all other guiding principles in this code is a 
matter for the licensee as the system operator. 
 

page 18



Guiding principle one states: 
Use of a surveillance camera system must always be for a specified purpose which is in pursuit 
of a legitimate aim and necessary to meet an identified pressing need.  

 

Legitimate aim and necessity are considered in relation to the four licensing objectives which are 
set out elsewhere within this report if the Committee is considering conditioning any premises 
licence with the installation of a CCTV surveillance system. 

 

 

Financial implications: 
  The only financial implication is if the applicant appeals against the decision made, with the 
possibility of court costs.    

Legal implications: 
   Legal implications are included within the report    

 

page 19



page 20



page 21



page 22



page 23



page 24



page 25



page 26



page 27



page 28



page 29



page 30



page 31



page 32



page 33



page 34



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not 
limited liability partnerships:  
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:  

 • does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or  
 • is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable 
 activity.  

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder 
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.  
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing 
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing 
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by 
providing their 'share code' to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work 
checking service (see below). 
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK 

 • An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the 
 holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see 
 note below about which sections of the passport to copy].  

 • An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport 
 as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national 
 of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  
 • A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European  
 Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the 
 holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their  
 stay in the UK. 

 • A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay 
 indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK. 

• A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
 indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in 
 the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National  
 Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.  

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
 giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency 
 or a previous employer. 

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in 
 combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their  
 name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
 official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a  
 Government agency or a previous employer. 

APPENDIX A

page 35



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

• A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
 work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a  
 licensable activity.  

• A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
 holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to  
 the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

• A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic 
 Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or 
 residence. 

• A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder 
 with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not  
 subject  to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity  
 when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance  
 number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)  
 of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a  person who is not a national of a  
 European Economic Area  state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has  
 derivative rights of residence.  

• Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK 
 with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or  
 reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration  
 decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number. 

• Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but 
 who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in 
 the UK including:-  

• evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport, 
• evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage 
 certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and 
• evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one 
 of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months: 

(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer, 
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank, 
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or 
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements. 

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide 
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the 
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form. 
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the 
following pages should be provided:- 
(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality; 
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph; 
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature; 
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and 
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to 
work.  
 

APPENDIX A

page 36



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided. 
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration 
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be 
determined until you have complied with this guidance.  
  
 Home Office online right to work checking service 
  
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by 
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.  
  
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in 
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-
to-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority 
to carry out the check.  
  
In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the 
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a 
licensable activity. 
  
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration status that can 
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation 
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service 
should submit copy documents as set out above.  
 

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

APPENDIX A

page 37



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience 
 does not exceed 500. 

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises  between 08.00 and 
 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the  
 screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides  
 by age classification ratings. 

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided 
 that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman 
 wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not  
 exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or  
 wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an  
 indoor sporting event. 

• Live music: no licence permission is required for:
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell  
 alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not  
 licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises 
 of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,  
 and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local  
 authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol  
 for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a  
 local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) 
 the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority  
 concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

APPENDIX A

page 38



page 39



page 40



APPENDIX B

page 41



APPENDIX B

page 42



APPENDIX C 

Conditions - as offered by the applicant within the Operating 
Schedule of the Application Form 

 
 
Hawkwind are a rock band celebrating their 52nd anniversary, and also the band founders 
eightieth birthday, in August this year. The event is known as Hawkfest and is primarily held 
for Hawkwind Fan Club members. It is a family orientated weekend. Tickets are sold 
privately in advance. We hope to sell approximately 1000 tickets, although previous events 
have never reached that capacity. Children twelve and under are free. The largest 
percentage of our guests is in the age range 50 to 70+. The remainder of our guests are 
from babies upwards. 
 
Hawkwind hold this type of event regularly at various locations, and have had no complaints 
from the Police, Council or Local Residents. The fans enjoy meeting each other and meeting 
the band. They are entertained by Hawkwind and other bands. We provide music workshops 
and childrens’ activities. The fans will be in tents, campervans and caravans.  
 
We intend to promote all of the licensing objectives, and due to the age profile and nature of 
our guests, we do not foresee any problems in doing so. 
 
Having run these events before, we know our guests and we have never experienced any 
crime or disorder. We have adequate stewards on site to deal with most situations that could 
arise.  
 
Key stewards are in contact with each other and the gate.  
 
Hawkfest wristbands will be affixed at the gate upon entry. In the event of any unauthorised 
access, anyone without a wristband will not be allowed to buy alcohol, and will be escorted 
to the gate by stewards.  
 
In the unlikely event of any serious situation arising, we would immediately contact the local 
police for assistance.  
 
All of the bar staff will be aware of their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
The event will be run in accordance with the Health and Safety Executive HSG195 Event 
Safety Guide (Chapter 28 – Small Events). 
 
There will be adequate stewards and marshalling on site. 
 
There will be and adequate toilets and clean water. 
 
There will be separate and non-public toilets provided for catering units. 
 
All catering personnel will have the relevant food hygiene certificates. 
 
Adequate site lighting will be provided. 
 
All fire lanes will be strictly maintained. 
 
There will be full access to the site for emergency services. 
 
There will be designated separate areas for campervans, caravans and tents. 
 

page 43



APPENDIX C 

There will be no vehicle movement in the camping area once parked. 
 
All guests arriving on site will immediately be directed to a holding area off the public 
highway. 
 
Entry to, and exit from the site for guests, will be from an entrance with good visibility in both 
directions. 
 
Separate entrance to, and exit from the site for crew, band and site vehicles. 
 
Access to the campsite will be allowed from 12.00 noon on Thursday 26th August, to spread 
arrival times and avoid any possibility of congestion. 
 
Sound levels and timings agreed with the council will be maintained at all times. 
 
Sound levels will be measured at nearby sensitive premises. 
 
Due to the nature of the event the majority of guests will arrive on Friday 27th August and 
leave on Monday 30th August, with the exception that some guests will leave the site during 
the day to use the local shops and facilities. We do not therefore foresee any late night 
disturbance to local residents. 
 
The premises will comply with Health and Safety guidelines and be suitable for children at all 
times. 
 
Children will be protected from harm because they will be with their parents. 
 
There will be no unaccompanied children. 
 
A designated children’s’ play area will be provided adjacent to the main structures, and, due 
to the location of the site, be well away from the main road. 
 
In line with Challenge 21, all bar staff will be instructed to challenge anyone who looks 
underage to show proof of age (although we have never had a problem with under-age 
drinking in the past). 

page 44



page 45



page 46



page 47



page 48



page 49



page 50



page 51



page 52



page 53



page 54



page 55



page 56



page 57



page 58



page 59



page 60



page 61



page 62



page 63



page 64



page 65



page 66



page 67



page 68



page 69



page 70



 

¯

© Crown  Cop yrigh t a nd  da tab ase  r ig ht s 20 21  Ordn ance  Su rvey 1 00 023 74 6   

1:2,761

Map Tile: SY2797SW Full Reference:  SY27221 971630 0.08 0.160.04
km

APPENDIX E

page 71



 

¯

© Crown  Cop yrigh t a nd  da tab ase  r ig ht s 20 21  Ordn ance  Su rvey 1 00 023 74 6   

1:1,381

Map Tile: SY2797SW Full Reference:  SY27134 971460 0.04 0.080.02
km

APPENDIX E

page 72



 

¯

© Crown  Cop yrigh t a nd  da tab ase  r ig ht s 20 21  Ordn ance  Su rvey 1 00 023 74 6   

1:5,522

Map Tile: SY2797SW Full Reference:  SY27226 972440 0.15 0.30.075
km

APPENDIX E

page 73



 

¯

© Crown  Cop yrigh t a nd  da tab ase  r ig ht s 20 21  Ordn ance  Su rvey 1 00 023 74 6   

1:2,761

Map Tile: SY2797SW Full Reference:  SY27156 971820 0.08 0.160.04
km

APPENDIX E

page 74



 

¯

© Crown  Cop yrigh t a nd  da tab ase  r ig ht s 20 21  Ordn ance  Su rvey 1 00 023 74 6   

1:11,045

Map Tile: SY2797SW Full Reference:  SY27226 972440 0.3 0.60.15
km

APPENDIX E

page 75



 

¯

© Crown  Cop yrigh t a nd  da tab ase  r ig ht s 20 21  Ordn ance  Su rvey 1 00 023 74 6   

1:5,522

Map Tile: SY2797SW Full Reference:  SY27134 971460 0.15 0.30.075
km

APPENDIX E

page 76



Entrance and egress for crew and Bands from both directions of Whitford Road
(All Images taken from Google Streetview) 

APPENDIX E

page 77



 

Entrance and egress for guests from both directions of Whitford Road 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX E

page 78



REPRESENTATIONS LIST

21 June 2021

Premises Licence WITH Alcohol

Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

New Application

Steven Belford Littley

Application Date:

Licence Type:

Application Type:

Premises:

Applicant:

Licence No: N/A

Application No: 052165

Mrs QuinceyPerson making Representation:

Representation Accepted:

Reason:

Representation has been accepted

We would like to make a representation regarding the licensing application number 052165 for Hills Farm 
Kilmington EX13 7NS.  We would l ke to make it clear that we do not object to events at Hills Farm per se; 
B&B, daytime outdoor horse events, weddings and indoor evening events etc occur with only occasional 
disturbance, however we do object to this application based on the following concerns: 

1. Licensing application accuracy & fairness
a. EDDC Environmental Health are committed to achieving a consistent and fair approach; this application 
has been made without community consultation and at short notice despite its scale (larger than the 
village), length (3 days) and potential impact. As tickets for the event are already on sale on the vendors 
website this application seems unreasonable and a "fait accompli";

b. Hills Farm website states it has indoor capacity for 80 people in a conference suite and 200 in a function 
suite. The application is for an indoor event of 1000 people so it is clear that this cannot be accommodated 
in existing indoor accommodation. Past events for this festival elsewhere occurred with outdoor stages and 
marquees (as documented on the festival website) - this not what is applied for;

2. Promotion of public safety
a. Vehicle access through the village. Large scale additional vehicle movements represent a risk at A35 
"blackspot" junctions into the village and the l kelihood of queues impacting residents and existing 
commercial & farm traffic on the Whitford Road, residents wa king within the village and cyclists on the 
national cycle route. Possible mud from vehicles off the fields also represents a public road safety issue;

b. Pollution of watercourses. Dirty run-off from an event of this size and exiting vehicles could cause 
significant environmental damage;

c. Waste generated by 1000 people consuming alcohol and food for 3 days and from their pets. It is likely, 
unless specific provision is provided on-site, that festival goers will wa k dogs off site and foul local lanes & 
paths; this is already a problem in the village. Similarly we are not aware of provision to handle chemical 
toilet waste from campers at this site;

d. 1000 people for 3 days will require a significant water supply and waste infrastructure. As this event is 
larger than the population of Kilmington the existing water & waste infrastructure is unl kely to meet 
demand;

3. Prevention of a public nuisance
a. There are no plans showing the extent, placing and direction facing of elements of the festival e.g. 
camping, toilets, stages, concessionary stands etc. Without such information it is imposs ble to assess 
public nuisance. The most likely siting (due to road access) is in the fields to the north of the farm which 
are closer to the village and very close to some residents, some of which are elderly;

b. Noise. The applied-for hours of operation are three days, 10am to 2am. The event date is set for for a 
bank holiday weekend in August when residents & holiday visitors will wish to enjoy the amenity of their 
gardens and the village. Hot weather could mean residents will also need to have windows open at night to 
stay cool. 

Low frequency noise and bass beat is thus very likely to be a nuisance as the background noise level in 
Kilmington, especially at night, is very low. 

We reference experience with the much more distant Yarty party annual event which occurs on one 
summer evening a year; it is clearly audible and causes some disturbance.

We also refer to EDDC Environmental Health policies 'these will help ensure that public nuisance does not 
occur and that neighbours are not disturbed throughout the night by music which is to be played outside or 
in a marquee. The policies are as follows:
- Live music must finish by 23.00
- Recorded amplified music must be turned down between 23.00 and midnight

Details:

20/07/2021 Page 1 of 17Report Generated On: page 79



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

- After midnight, background music is permitted but must not be audible beyond the site boundary

This application does not meet EDDC Environmental Health policies and given it is over 3 days, gives 
residents no respite and as such is unreasonable. Such an event is not compatible so close to a very quiet 
country village in an AONB and will cause prolonged public nuisance and disturb sleep;

c. Light pollution. Kilmington has no street lights and has strict planning requirements as it is a dark village. 
This event will cause light pollution and disturb local wildlife including protected species such as bats and 
owls.

Evidence:

Suggestion:

20/07/2021 Page 2 of 17Report Generated On: page 80



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

Mr QUINCEYPerson making Representation:

Representation Accepted:

Reason:

Representation has been accepted

We would like to make a representation regarding the licensing application number 052165 for Hills Farm 
Kilmington EX13 7NS.  We would l ke to make it clear that we do not object to events at Hills Farm per se; 
B&B, daytime outdoor horse events, weddings and indoor evening events etc occur with only occasional 
disturbance, however we do object to this application based on the following concerns: 

1. Licensing application accuracy & fairness
a. EDDC Environmental Health are committed to achieving a consistent and fair approach; this application 
has been made without community consultation and at short notice despite its scale (larger than the 
village), length (3 days) and potential impact. As tickets for the event are already on sale on the vendors 
website this application seems unreasonable and a "fait accompli";

b. Hills Farm website states it has indoor capacity for 80 people in a conference suite and 200 in a function 
suite. The application is for an indoor event of 1000 people so it is clear that this cannot be accommodated 
in existing indoor accommodation. Past events for this festival elsewhere occurred with outdoor stages and 
marquees (as documented on the festival website) - this not what is applied for;

2. Promotion of public safety
a. Vehicle access through the village. Large scale additional vehicle movements represent a risk at A35 
"blackspot" junctions into the village and the l kelihood of queues impacting residents and existing 
commercial & farm traffic on the Whitford Road, residents wa king within the village and cyclists on the 
national cycle route. Possible mud from vehicles off the fields also represents a public road safety issue;

b. Pollution of watercourses. Dirty run-off from an event of this size and exiting vehicles could cause 
significant environmental damage;

c. Waste generated by 1000 people consuming alcohol and food for 3 days and from their pets. It is likely, 
unless specific provision is provided on-site, that festival goers will wa k dogs off site and foul local lanes & 
paths; this is already a problem in the village. Similarly we are not aware of provision to handle chemical 
toilet waste from campers at this site;

d. 1000 people for 3 days will require a significant water supply and waste infrastructure. As this event is 
larger than the population of Kilmington the existing water & waste infrastructure is unl kely to meet 
demand;

3. Prevention of a public nuisance
a. There are no plans showing the extent, placing and direction facing of elements of the festival e.g. 
camping, toilets, stages, concessionary stands etc. Without such information it is imposs ble to assess 
public nuisance. The most likely siting (due to road access) is in the fields to the north of the farm which 
are closer to the village and very close to some residents, some of which are elderly;

b. Noise. The applied-for hours of operation are three days, 10am to 2am. The event date is set for for a 
bank holiday weekend in August when residents & holiday visitors will wish to enjoy the amenity of their 
gardens and the village. Hot weather could mean residents will also need to have windows open at night to 
stay cool. 

Low frequency noise and bass beat is thus very likely to be a nuisance as the background noise level in 
Kilmington, especially at night, is very low. 
We reference experience with the much more distant Yarty party annual event which occurs on one 
summer evening a year; it is clearly audible and causes some disturbance.

We also refer to EDDC Environmental Health policies 'these will help ensure that public nuisance does not 
occur and that neighbours are not disturbed throughout the night by music which is to be played outside or 
in a marquee. The policies are as follows:
- Live music must finish by 23.00
- Recorded amplified music must be turned down between 23.00 and midnight
- After midnight, background music is permitted but must not be audible beyond the site boundary

This application does not meet EDDC Environmental Health policies and given it is over 3 days, gives 
residents no respite and as such is unreasonable. Such an event is not compatible so close to a very quiet 
country village in an AONB and will cause prolonged public nuisance and disturb sleep;

c. Light pollution. Kilmington has no street lights and has strict planning requirements as it is a dark village. 
This event will cause light pollution and disturb local wildlife including protected species such as bats and 
owls.

Details:

Evidence:

Suggestion:

20/07/2021 Page 3 of 17Report Generated On: page 81



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

 Kilmington Parish Council
C/O Adrian Jenkins, Clerk to Kilmington Parish,    

Person making Representation:

Representation Accepted:

Reason:

Representation has been accepted

Representation regarding:  Reference 052165 Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, Axminster EX13 
7NS
Kilmington Parish Council has resolved to register the following comments regarding this application.

1. The Performance of Live and Recorded Music - Prevention of public nuisance 

Licence Application Information
Performance of Live and Recorded music 'Indoors':
Friday 10am to 2am Saturday
Saturday 10am to 2am Sunday
Sunday 10am to 2am Monday

Observations / comments
Hills Farm is located on the edge of Kilmington Village with residential properties close by. Therefore 
music performed over the three days will disturb residents and create a nuisance. 

The main stage is in a 'Big Top' tent. We would not consider this 'indoors' as described. The sound of the 
music performed in a tent will be less contained than performances within a permanent substantial building 
and will therefore travel further. 

In particular residents are concerned that, if loud music is performed in a tent late at night and in the early 
morning hours for the three days, this will create a nuisance and disturb sleep. This would be 
unreasonable and unacceptable.

Changes that will help address residents' concerns
We suggest that, at a minimum, the published Environmental Health policies and times should be 
enforced. This will reduce the nuisance.  (https://eastdevon.gov.uk/environmental-health-and-
wellbeing/noise/noise-guidance-and-advice/guidance-and-advice-for-applicants-for-temporary-event-
notices/ ): 
'Our team applies policies to achieve a consistent and fair approach based on our experiences of events 
taking place in the community.  These will help ensure that public nuisance does not occur and that 
neighbours are not disturbed throughout the night by music which is to be played outside or in a marquee.  
The policies are as follows:
" Live music must finish by 23.00
" Recorded amplified music must be turned down between 23.00 and midnight
" After midnight, background music is permitted but must not be audible beyond the site boundary
For all events the applicant should monitor the area throughout the event to ensure that loud music is not 
clearly audible off site and is not disturbing local residents'. 

2. Vehicle Movements and Routing
Prevention of public nuisance / Promotion of public safety / Protection of children from harm

Licence Application Information
Event Access: Vehicle routing, signage, pedestrian safety. 
Organisers are making available 1000 adult tickets. Add to this audience, 15+ performers, staff and 
contactors vehicles. 
Additional vehicles through the village could total maybe 300 / 400 coming and going, including caravans, 
motorhomes, vans and trucks.

Observations / comments
The A35 through Kilmington has a 50mph limit and is an 'accident black spot'. There is no pedestrian 
crossing for the bus stop or local shops. In addition this year through tourist traffic is now much greater. 
Kilmington Crossroads is always particularly busy as it provides access to the popular Millers Farm Shop 
and a route to Whitford, Musbury, Colyton and Seaton. This event is over a busy Bank Holiday and can 
only add to the traffic hazard.

Whitford Road The Festival site is on Whitford Road which is narrow in places with high banks, has no 
pavements or street lighting. It has a 30mph limit. Residents use the road as pedestrian access to the 
village hall, recreation field and two churches which are all located on Whitford Road. The road is also part 
of the Route33 National Cycle Route and is frequently used by HGVs visiting the industrial and concrete 
works at the quarry. Festival goers will use it for access to shops and public transport. Increased traffic will 
cause a nuisance and drivers unfamiliar with the road will increase the danger to pedestrians and cyclists

Other village roads: The Hill, George Lane and The Street Access from the A35 to Whitford Road is 
possible using The Hill or George Lane junctions and The Street. These roads are used as 'cut throughs' 
particularly when traffic backs up along the A35 from Kilmington Crossroads. These routes take traffic 
through narrow village residential roads, which have no pavements or street lighting. Additional vehicles, 
particularly caravans and motorhomes will cause a nuisance and drivers unfamiliar with the route will 
increase the danger to pedestrians and cyclists.  

Changes that will help address residents' concerns
Routing Vehicles To reduce nuisance and improve safety for residents and their children, Festival vehicles 

Details:

20/07/2021 Page 4 of 17Report Generated On: page 82



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

should be directed from A35 to only use Whitford Road as site access. This would avoid additional traffic 
on narrow roads through the central residential area of the village thereby avoiding some nuisance and 
improving safety for pedestrians and cyclists. Organisers have kindly offered to send directions and a map 
with Festival tickets. 

A35 Please provide clear 'Direction' and 'No Access' signage on the appropriate A35 junctions to direct 
vehicles to the Festival only via The Whitford Road. This would avoid additional traffic on narrow roads 
through the central residential area of the village thereby avoiding some nuisance and improving safety for 
pedestrians and cyclists.

A35 A temporary A35 speed limit reduction from 50mph to 30mph through the village should be introduced 
over the weekend. This would improve safety around the busy Kilmington Cross junction by slowing 
through vehicles giving cars, vans and caravans more time to enter and exit Whitford Road. It would also 
improve safety for residential and Festival pedestrians crossing the A35 to the farm shop and café.

Whitford Road A temporary speed limit reduction from 30mph to 20mph should be introduced over the 
weekend. This would slow vehicles on this narrow road which has no pavements or lighting and has high 
banks in places. This would improve safety for Festival drivers unfamiliar with the road and pedestrians, 
particularly festival goers on foot who don't know the road and perhaps are unfamiliar with wa king on 
narrow country roads without pavements.

Whitford Road. Please provide clear 'Direction' and 'No Access' signage on the appropriate junctions along 
Whitford Road to direct vehicles to the Festival only. No Access/No Entry signs at the Junctions of: The 
Street; the Residential road/Cycle Route 33 towards the quarry; the residential Lane opposite Hills Farm.  
This would avoid traffic taking alternate routes/wrong turns through residential areas thereby avoiding 
some nuisance and improving safety for pedestrians and cyclists.
Thank you for your assistance with this matter to ensure it is a safe and successful event for festival goers 
with minimal nuisance to local residents.

On behalf of Kilmington Parish Council.

Evidence:

Suggestion:

20/07/2021 Page 5 of 17Report Generated On: page 83



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

Simon BusePerson making Representation:

Representation Accepted:

Reason:

Representation has been accepted

19th July 2021

To whom it may concern,

Re: Licence application 052165, Hawkfest, EX13 7NS

As local residents we have grave concerns regarding the above detailed licence application and 
associated music festival proposal. The concerns are numerous but this representation highlights what we 
feel are some of the most serious.

1. The proposed location and vehicular access

The proposed site of this music festival is immediately adjacent to the boundary of the small, peaceful and 
picturesque village of Kilmington.   The only vehicular access to the site is immediately through the narrow, 
winding lanes of Kilmington, all of which intersect with a heavily congested traffic accident black spot along 
the A35.   These lanes have few passing places and simply are not suitable nor safe for the required 
access for such a large quantity of vehicles.

These lanes are also used by many pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders. Whitford Road, which would be 
the main access route for the event, is part of the cycle network and regularly used by cyclists and the 
significant volume of traffic which would undoubtedly be created by this event will pose a significant safety 
risk to these vulnerable road users.

As such, ourselves and many other local residents are very concerned about the significant volume of site 
and visitor traffic before, during and after the event. Knowing the road network as only experienced local 
residents can, vehicles will certainly congest the entire village as drivers seek alternative routes onto/off 
the A35 the congestion to access and leave the site. Not only will this cause significant access disruption 
and inconvenience for local residents but this exceptional volume of traffic have a serious and detrimental 
environmental and ecological impact on the surrounding area.

The sheer volume of additional traffic entering/exiting the A35 is also of grave concern. The three A35 
access roads within Kilmington (Whitford Road, Shute Road and The Hill) all enter a 50mph zone and all 
are recognised as very dangerous, with the Whitford Road being an accident black spot, sadly including 
numerous fatalities. During the tourist season the junctions are known to cause congestion on the A35 
also with tailbacks often extending in both directions of the A35.

As such, a significant increase in village traffic as a direct result of the festival will undoubtedly also have a 
huge impact on the congestion of the A35 and greatly increase the risk of more serious accidents and risk 
to life in the wider area.

It is the congestion on the A35 that will also cause the village to become gridlocked. During the tourist 
season it can often take individual motorists a number of minutes to enter the A35 from all three exit 
routes, especially if turning right. This regularly causes congestion at the junctions for local residents 
leaving the village in cars, so it is absolutely beyond doubt that the significant increase in car usage during 
the event and numerous facilities vehicles before, during and after, many of which will likely be oversized, 
will cause absolute gridlock within the village and surrounding areas, not to mention damage to the 
roadways, verges and residents property as vehicles struggle to manoeuvrer in such a confined village 
setting.

With regard to wording within the application, no allowances have been made for the above situations:-

o The application states that guests will be directed to a holding area off the public highway. 
Knowing the limited size of the venue, given that there is to be various designated sites for camping etc 
that will likely utilise the majority of the land space available, I challenge the event organisers to provide 
details of the capacity of the holding area.  Indeed, it is our suspicion that this holding area will not be 
sufficient for any and all eventualities of many guests arriving at the same time. It is fair to expect in 
excess of 500 guest vehicle, plus site traffic, and without scheduled arrival times we are very dubious as to 
the true ability to hold all arrival traffic away from the public highway.
o The application states that there will be no vehicle movement in the camping area when parked. 
This does not state that guest vehicles will be required to remain on-site during the event (i.e. access the 
public highway only upon arrival and departure). As such, the concerns regarding congestion in the village 
and on the A35, plus the safety and ecological concerns, are not limited to just arrival and departure days. 
Indeed, with the village facilities simply not sufficient to support 1,000+ guests for up to five days many 
guests will be forced to travel, by car, to the local towns of Axrninster and Seaton for supplies, thus 
creating these many problems for the entire duration of the event (plus before and after for site vehicles).
o The application states that entry and exit will be from an entrance with good vis bility in both 
directions. The entrance to the site will be located just outside of the village boundary and approximately ½ 
mile away from the A35. The organisers have not provided evidence of any thought nor concern for the 
traffic problems beyond the immediate festival location. Indeed, with the road network as it is we believe 
the organisers must be responsible and accountable for ALL festival traffic THROUGHOUT the event (i.e. 
from and to the first and last site vehicle) up to the point it has left the village boundary and surrounding 
area* by way of STAFFED local traffic only zones within Kilmington and STAFFED traffic management on 

Details:

20/07/2021 Page 6 of 17Report Generated On: page 84



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

all A35 access points. Only by actively controlling the traffic at STAFFED checkpoints for the whole 
duration of the event, including before and after, can the organisers minimise the many safety risks and 
ensure due consideration and minimal impact for the village and surrounding area. Signboards will simply 
not suffice because with the volume of congestion likely to arise signboards will be ineffective and likely 
ignored by frustrated guests and site vehicles.

* by "village boundary" we mean the village enter/exit boards on the A35 and by "surrounding area" we 
mean the A358 at Musbury and A35 at Shute, so as not to shift the problem away from Kilmington and into 
other surrounding villages.

2. Hygiene and resultant environmental impact

The site in question has never hosted such as sizeable event and has no established facilities to cater for 
the hygiene of such a vast crowd for such a prolonged period of time.

As previously stated the venue is in very close proximity to residential properties and the village of 
Kilmington, plus numerous dairy farms and a fresh water source river, and as such the community is very 
concerned that there is a significant hygiene and environmental risk to the surrounding area and precious 
habitats.

3. Noise pollution and widespread disturbance and disruption

The venue is not in a rural location. It is in fact in very close proximity to many 100's of households. The 
villages of Kilmington, Whitford and Shute are known to have an older populations, some of which are are 
vulnerable and rely upon the quite nature of the villages for a comfortable quality of life.

The sudden and vastly unmanaged influx of 1,000+ guests and staff, not to mention the noise pollution, 
will undoubtedly have a seriously detrimental effect on the well-being of local residents and due to the 
close proximity will l kely cause distress and disturbance to a great many.

Additionally, the venue sits at an elevated position when compared to all surrounding villages and as such, 
combined with local geography, residents up to seven miles in distance** from the venue will be subject to 
significant noise pollution for what appears to be a very extended period of time.

** This fear is supported by the fact that on Friday 16th July 2021 residents of Musbury could hear music 
from an event at the Axminster show ground; that being the Yarty Party. The Axminster Show ground is at 
a much lower elevation and a far superior location, so it is absolutely reasonable to assume that an event 
at Cranberries such as the proposed will have a far worse and unreasonably detrimental effect on many 
more households.

In addition to private residences there are numerous working farms within close proximity to the proposed 
venue, two of which are dairy farms that which are l kely to have pregnant/calving heifers. The barns are 
close to the proposed venue and being in such a vulnerable state there is grave concern for the welfare of 
these animals as they would likely suffer great distress as the result of noise pollution and general 
disturbance.

4. Criminal activity

With any large scale event  there is the  risk  of  criminal  activity  in the surrounding  area;  not necessarily 
conducted by any person attending the event but by criminals freely travelling around and assessing local 
properties under the cover of the large number of visitors travelling to and from the event on a daily basis.

With the proposed location of this event being so close to the village boundary, and with no street lighting 
nor police presence, there is a genuine concern amongst local residents that an event such as this will 
encourage criminal activity in the area; be it during the event or soon afterwards (following evaluation of 
the area by criminals during the event). The village of Kilmington and  surrounding area are normally quiet 
and peaceful but the attendance of 1,000+ visitors would expose the area to unnecessary and 
unreasonable safety and security risks.

5. The track record of the venue

Cranberries has been a wedding venue for a number of years, although it operates at a fairly low capacity.

Despite this low capacity however there have been numerous incidents in recent years of guests causing 
disturbance to local households in early hours of the morning with fireworks, excessively loud music and 
shouting.

I have personally not reported any incident to the local authority but am aware that concerns have been 
raised with the applicant directly, however when challenged to account for and control the actions of their 
guests, the licence applicant, Mr Steven Belford Littley, has repeatedly denied any respons bility for guests 
staying at the venue. On one occasion the applicant stated that "I'm only in control of what I do" and the 
community is gravely concerned that this approach and attitude will further exacerbate the disruption and 
disturbance we will suffer.

With the history of the venue and track record of the licence applicant the community has good reason to 
be concerned about the hosting of and operating of this excessively large proposed event.

6. General misleading wording within the licence application

a) The applicant states that "We hope to sell approximately 1000 tickets, although previous events 

20/07/2021 Page 7 of 17Report Generated On: page 85



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

have never reached that capacity''. This suggestion that visitor numbers will be less than 1,000 (one can 
only assume for the purpose increasingly the l kelihood of the application being granted) is a complete 
fallacy - the event was sold out to maximum capacity before this application was submitted. The applicant 
would have known this prior to submitting the application and claim otherwise is therefore an untruth.
b) The applicant states that "Hawkwind hold this type of event regularly at various locations, and 
have had no complaints from the Police, Council or Local Residents". This may be the case but the 
statement is irrelevant to the application because there is no precedence at this specific location. Never 
before has such an inappropriate event been proposed nor held at this location so to any claim of previous 
events not generating complaints is, as stated, irrelevant. To date, the only "Hawkfest" event in the local 
area was a single night of live music in the small beer garden at The Old Inn in Kilmington in 2019, which 
was, coincidentally, run at the time by Mr Steven Belford Littley.  Attendance was no more than 100 
people, many of which were normal patrons of the establishment, and the music finished at 23:00. To draw 
any comparison to this small event to a five day music festival is simply not possible and as such a 
baseless claim and statement. Additionally, the applicant undoubtealy has a significant commercial 
interest in the success of this event which brings statements such as this into further question.
c) At no point does the application suggest any support nor marshalling will extend beyond the 
boundary of the festival site. Being in such unusually close proximity to a residential area (i.e. Kilmington)  
and the likely significant  disruption  this residential  area will suffer I  put it to the licencing committee that 
should the event proceed the organisers have a duty of care that extends beyond the festival site and into 
the parish of Kilmington, and as such they should be respons ble for the actions of all  attendees within the 
parish  of  Kilmington,  up to the border with the A35 for the entire duration of the licence duration by way 
of posted and staffed traffic restrictions and privately funded security staff conducting routine patrols 
throughout the parish to ensure social responsibility and compliance, much like they would within the 
venue boundary. Put simply, it is not fair nor right for this event to put such a burden on the local 
community.
d) The duration and timings of the event. As outlined in the application the premises will be open 
for guests from 12:00 Thursday 26th August 2021 to 00.00 Tuesday 31st  August. This is FIVE DAYS with 
FOUR DAYS of alcohol sales. As clearly stated, Cranberries is not located in a rural location - it is on the 
boundary of a residential area. Even worse are the proposed times - music for 20-hours a day to 2AM, with 
alcohol sales the same (except Thursday)! These proposed duration and times are simply ridiculous and 
local residents are very, very concerned about the significant disruption they will cause for a prolonged 
period of time. Indeed by comparison, the Yarty Party which is being held as I type this representation, in a 
far more suitable location (Axminster Show ground), is just three days in length and limited to 00:00.

In summary, to operate an event such as the proposed at the location listed is simply irresponsible and 
deeply inconsiderate. There are far more suitable venues in the local area, such as the Axminster Show 
ground, and trying to run such an event at the proposed location is bordering on the preposterous.

An event of this nature would have a detrimental effect on a many times more households than guests 
attending and I question how this can possibly be acceptable.

Lastly, I am sorry for the sheer length of this representation however the community feels very strongly on 
this matter and vehemently oppose the event proceeding at all.

Sincerely,

Simon and Samantha Buse
John and Jean Thorne

Evidence:

Suggestion:

20/07/2021 Page 8 of 17Report Generated On: page 86



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

Samantha BusePerson making Representation:

Representation Accepted:

Reason:

Representation has been accepted

19th July 2021

To whom it may concern,

Re: Licence application 052165, Hawkfest, EX13 7NS

As local residents we have grave concerns regarding the above detailed licence application and 
associated music festival proposal. The concerns are numerous but this representation highlights what we 
feel are some of the most serious.

1. The proposed location and vehicular access

The proposed site of this music festival is immediately adjacent to the boundary of the small, peaceful and 
picturesque village of Kilmington.   The only vehicular access to the site is immediately through the narrow, 
winding lanes of Kilmington, all of which intersect with a heavily congested traffic accident black spot along 
the A35.   These lanes have few passing places and simply are not suitable nor safe for the required 
access for such a large quantity of vehicles.

These lanes are also used by many pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders. Whitford Road, which would be 
the main access route for the event, is part of the cycle network and regularly used by cyclists and the 
significant volume of traffic which would undoubtedly be created by this event will pose a significant safety 
risk to these vulnerable road users.

As such, ourselves and many other local residents are very concerned about the significant volume of site 
and visitor traffic before, during and after the event. Knowing the road network as only experienced local 
residents can, vehicles will certainly congest the entire village as drivers seek alternative routes onto/off 
the A35 the congestion to access and leave the site. Not only will this cause significant access disruption 
and inconvenience for local residents but this exceptional volume of traffic have a serious and detrimental 
environmental and ecological impact on the surrounding area.

The sheer volume of additional traffic entering/exiting the A35 is also of grave concern. The three A35 
access roads within Kilmington (Whitford Road, Shute Road and The Hill) all enter a 50mph zone and all 
are recognised as very dangerous, with the Whitford Road being an accident black spot, sadly including 
numerous fatalities. During the tourist season the junctions are known to cause congestion on the A35 
also with tailbacks often extending in both directions of the A35.

As such, a significant increase in village traffic as a direct result of the festival will undoubtedly also have a 
huge impact on the congestion of the A35 and greatly increase the risk of more serious accidents and risk 
to life in the wider area.

It is the congestion on the A35 that will also cause the village to become gridlocked. During the tourist 
season it can often take individual motorists a number of minutes to enter the A35 from all three exit 
routes, especially if turning right. This regularly causes congestion at the junctions for local residents 
leaving the village in cars, so it is absolutely beyond doubt that the significant increase in car usage during 
the event and numerous facilities vehicles before, during and after, many of which will likely be oversized, 
will cause absolute gridlock within the village and surrounding areas, not to mention damage to the 
roadways, verges and residents property as vehicles struggle to manoeuvrer in such a confined village 
setting.

With regard to wording within the application, no allowances have been made for the above situations:-

o The application states that guests will be directed to a holding area off the public highway. 
Knowing the limited size of the venue, given that there is to be various designated sites for camping etc 
that will likely utilise the majority of the land space available, I challenge the event organisers to provide 
details of the capacity of the holding area.  Indeed, it is our suspicion that this holding area will not be 
sufficient for any and all eventualities of many guests arriving at the same time. It is fair to expect in 
excess of 500 guest vehicle, plus site traffic, and without scheduled arrival times we are very dubious as to 
the true ability to hold all arrival traffic away from the public highway.
o The application states that there will be no vehicle movement in the camping area when parked. 
This does not state that guest vehicles will be required to remain on-site during the event (i.e. access the 
public highway only upon arrival and departure). As such, the concerns regarding congestion in the village 
and on the A35, plus the safety and ecological concerns, are not limited to just arrival and departure days. 
Indeed, with the village facilities simply not sufficient to support 1,000+ guests for up to five days many 
guests will be forced to travel, by car, to the local towns of Axrninster and Seaton for supplies, thus 
creating these many problems for the entire duration of the event (plus before and after for site vehicles).
o The application states that entry and exit will be from an entrance with good vis bility in both 
directions. The entrance to the site will be located just outside of the village boundary and approximately ½ 
mile away from the A35. The organisers have not provided evidence of any thought nor concern for the 
traffic problems beyond the immediate festival location. Indeed, with the road network as it is we believe 
the organisers must be responsible and accountable for ALL festival traffic THROUGHOUT the event (i.e. 
from and to the first and last site vehicle) up to the point it has left the village boundary and surrounding 
area* by way of STAFFED local traffic only zones within Kilmington and STAFFED traffic management on 

Details:

20/07/2021 Page 9 of 17Report Generated On: page 87



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

all A35 access points. Only by actively controlling the traffic at STAFFED checkpoints for the whole 
duration of the event, including before and after, can the organisers minimise the many safety risks and 
ensure due consideration and minimal impact for the village and surrounding area. Signboards will simply 
not suffice because with the volume of congestion likely to arise signboards will be ineffective and likely 
ignored by frustrated guests and site vehicles.

* by "village boundary" we mean the village enter/exit boards on the A35 and by "surrounding area" we 
mean the A358 at Musbury and A35 at Shute, so as not to shift the problem away from Kilmington and into 
other surrounding villages.

2. Hygiene and resultant environmental impact

The site in question has never hosted such as sizeable event and has no established facilities to cater for 
the hygiene of such a vast crowd for such a prolonged period of time.

As previously stated the venue is in very close proximity to residential properties and the village of 
Kilmington, plus numerous dairy farms and a fresh water source river, and as such the community is very 
concerned that there is a significant hygiene and environmental risk to the surrounding area and precious 
habitats.

3. Noise pollution and widespread disturbance and disruption

The venue is not in a rural location. It is in fact in very close proximity to many 100's of households. The 
villages of Kilmington, Whitford and Shute are known to have an older populations, some of which are are 
vulnerable and rely upon the quite nature of the villages for a comfortable quality of life.

The sudden and vastly unmanaged influx of 1,000+ guests and staff, not to mention the noise pollution, 
will undoubtedly have a seriously detrimental effect on the well-being of local residents and due to the 
close proximity will l kely cause distress and disturbance to a great many.

Additionally, the venue sits at an elevated position when compared to all surrounding villages and as such, 
combined with local geography, residents up to seven miles in distance** from the venue will be subject to 
significant noise pollution for what appears to be a very extended period of time.

** This fear is supported by the fact that on Friday 16th July 2021 residents of Musbury could hear music 
from an event at the Axminster show ground; that being the Yarty Party. The Axminster Show ground is at 
a much lower elevation and a far superior location, so it is absolutely reasonable to assume that an event 
at Cranberries such as the proposed will have a far worse and unreasonably detrimental effect on many 
more households.

In addition to private residences there are numerous working farms within close proximity to the proposed 
venue, two of which are dairy farms that which are l kely to have pregnant/calving heifers. The barns are 
close to the proposed venue and being in such a vulnerable state there is grave concern for the welfare of 
these animals as they would likely suffer great distress as the result of noise pollution and general 
disturbance.

4. Criminal activity

With any large scale event  there is the  risk  of  criminal  activity  in the surrounding  area;  not necessarily 
conducted by any person attending the event but by criminals freely travelling around and assessing local 
properties under the cover of the large number of visitors travelling to and from the event on a daily basis.

With the proposed location of this event being so close to the village boundary, and with no street lighting 
nor police presence, there is a genuine concern amongst local residents that an event such as this will 
encourage criminal activity in the area; be it during the event or soon afterwards (following evaluation of 
the area by criminals during the event). The village of Kilmington and  surrounding area are normally quiet 
and peaceful but the attendance of 1,000+ visitors would expose the area to unnecessary and 
unreasonable safety and security risks.

5. The track record of the venue

Cranberries has been a wedding venue for a number of years, although it operates at a fairly low capacity.

Despite this low capacity however there have been numerous incidents in recent years of guests causing 
disturbance to local households in early hours of the morning with fireworks, excessively loud music and 
shouting.

I have personally not reported any incident to the local authority but am aware that concerns have been 
raised with the applicant directly, however when challenged to account for and control the actions of their 
guests, the licence applicant, Mr Steven Belford Littley, has repeatedly denied any respons bility for guests 
staying at the venue. On one occasion the applicant stated that "I'm only in control of what I do" and the 
community is gravely concerned that this approach and attitude will further exacerbate the disruption and 
disturbance we will suffer.

With the history of the venue and track record of the licence applicant the community has good reason to 
be concerned about the hosting of and operating of this excessively large proposed event.

6. General misleading wording within the licence application

a) The applicant states that "We hope to sell approximately 1000 tickets, although previous events 

20/07/2021 Page 10 of 17Report Generated On: page 88



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

have never reached that capacity''. This suggestion that visitor numbers will be less than 1,000 (one can 
only assume for the purpose increasingly the l kelihood of the application being granted) is a complete 
fallacy - the event was sold out to maximum capacity before this application was submitted. The applicant 
would have known this prior to submitting the application and claim otherwise is therefore an untruth.
b) The applicant states that "Hawkwind hold this type of event regularly at various locations, and 
have had no complaints from the Police, Council or Local Residents". This may be the case but the 
statement is irrelevant to the application because there is no precedence at this specific location. Never 
before has such an inappropriate event been proposed nor held at this location so to any claim of previous 
events not generating complaints is, as stated, irrelevant. To date, the only "Hawkfest" event in the local 
area was a single night of live music in the small beer garden at The Old Inn in Kilmington in 2019, which 
was, coincidentally, run at the time by Mr Steven Belford Littley.  Attendance was no more than 100 
people, many of which were normal patrons of the establishment, and the music finished at 23:00. To draw 
any comparison to this small event to a five day music festival is simply not possible and as such a 
baseless claim and statement. Additionally, the applicant undoubtealy has a significant commercial 
interest in the success of this event which brings statements such as this into further question.
c) At no point does the application suggest any support nor marshalling will extend beyond the 
boundary of the festival site. Being in such unusually close proximity to a residential area (i.e. Kilmington)  
and the likely significant  disruption  this residential  area will suffer I  put it to the licencing committee that 
should the event proceed the organisers have a duty of care that extends beyond the festival site and into 
the parish of Kilmington, and as such they should be respons ble for the actions of all  attendees within the 
parish  of  Kilmington,  up to the border with the A35 for the entire duration of the licence duration by way 
of posted and staffed traffic restrictions and privately funded security staff conducting routine patrols 
throughout the parish to ensure social responsibility and compliance, much like they would within the 
venue boundary. Put simply, it is not fair nor right for this event to put such a burden on the local 
community.
d) The duration and timings of the event. As outlined in the application the premises will be open 
for guests from 12:00 Thursday 26th August 2021 to 00.00 Tuesday 31st  August. This is FIVE DAYS with 
FOUR DAYS of alcohol sales. As clearly stated, Cranberries is not located in a rural location - it is on the 
boundary of a residential area. Even worse are the proposed times - music for 20-hours a day to 2AM, with 
alcohol sales the same (except Thursday)! These proposed duration and times are simply ridiculous and 
local residents are very, very concerned about the significant disruption they will cause for a prolonged 
period of time. Indeed by comparison, the Yarty Party which is being held as I type this representation, in a 
far more suitable location (Axminster Show ground), is just three days in length and limited to 00:00.

In summary, to operate an event such as the proposed at the location listed is simply irresponsible and 
deeply inconsiderate. There are far more suitable venues in the local area, such as the Axminster Show 
ground, and trying to run such an event at the proposed location is bordering on the preposterous.

An event of this nature would have a detrimental effect on a many times more households than guests 
attending and I question how this can possibly be acceptable.

Lastly, I am sorry for the sheer length of this representation however the community feels very strongly on 
this matter and vehemently oppose the event proceeding at all.

Sincerely,

Simon and Samantha Buse
John and Jean Thorne

Evidence:

Suggestion:

20/07/2021 Page 11 of 17Report Generated On: page 89



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

John ThornePerson making Representation:

Representation Accepted:

Reason:

Representation has been accepted

19th July 2021

To whom it may concern,

Re: Licence application 052165, Hawkfest, EX13 7NS

As local residents we have grave concerns regarding the above detailed licence application and 
associated music festival proposal. The concerns are numerous but this representation highlights what we 
feel are some of the most serious.

1. The proposed location and vehicular access

The proposed site of this music festival is immediately adjacent to the boundary of the small, peaceful and 
picturesque village of Kilmington.   The only vehicular access to the site is immediately through the narrow, 
winding lanes of Kilmington, all of which intersect with a heavily congested traffic accident black spot along 
the A35.   These lanes have few passing places and simply are not suitable nor safe for the required 
access for such a large quantity of vehicles.

These lanes are also used by many pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders. Whitford Road, which would be 
the main access route for the event, is part of the cycle network and regularly used by cyclists and the 
significant volume of traffic which would undoubtedly be created by this event will pose a significant safety 
risk to these vulnerable road users.

As such, ourselves and many other local residents are very concerned about the significant volume of site 
and visitor traffic before, during and after the event. Knowing the road network as only experienced local 
residents can, vehicles will certainly congest the entire village as drivers seek alternative routes onto/off 
the A35 the congestion to access and leave the site. Not only will this cause significant access disruption 
and inconvenience for local residents but this exceptional volume of traffic have a serious and detrimental 
environmental and ecological impact on the surrounding area.

The sheer volume of additional traffic entering/exiting the A35 is also of grave concern. The three A35 
access roads within Kilmington (Whitford Road, Shute Road and The Hill) all enter a 50mph zone and all 
are recognised as very dangerous, with the Whitford Road being an accident black spot, sadly including 
numerous fatalities. During the tourist season the junctions are known to cause congestion on the A35 
also with tailbacks often extending in both directions of the A35.

As such, a significant increase in village traffic as a direct result of the festival will undoubtedly also have a 
huge impact on the congestion of the A35 and greatly increase the risk of more serious accidents and risk 
to life in the wider area.

It is the congestion on the A35 that will also cause the village to become gridlocked. During the tourist 
season it can often take individual motorists a number of minutes to enter the A35 from all three exit 
routes, especially if turning right. This regularly causes congestion at the junctions for local residents 
leaving the village in cars, so it is absolutely beyond doubt that the significant increase in car usage during 
the event and numerous facilities vehicles before, during and after, many of which will likely be oversized, 
will cause absolute gridlock within the village and surrounding areas, not to mention damage to the 
roadways, verges and residents property as vehicles struggle to manoeuvrer in such a confined village 
setting.

With regard to wording within the application, no allowances have been made for the above situations:-

o The application states that guests will be directed to a holding area off the public highway. 
Knowing the limited size of the venue, given that there is to be various designated sites for camping etc 
that will likely utilise the majority of the land space available, I challenge the event organisers to provide 
details of the capacity of the holding area.  Indeed, it is our suspicion that this holding area will not be 
sufficient for any and all eventualities of many guests arriving at the same time. It is fair to expect in 
excess of 500 guest vehicle, plus site traffic, and without scheduled arrival times we are very dubious as to 
the true ability to hold all arrival traffic away from the public highway.
o The application states that there will be no vehicle movement in the camping area when parked. 
This does not state that guest vehicles will be required to remain on-site during the event (i.e. access the 
public highway only upon arrival and departure). As such, the concerns regarding congestion in the village 
and on the A35, plus the safety and ecological concerns, are not limited to just arrival and departure days. 
Indeed, with the village facilities simply not sufficient to support 1,000+ guests for up to five days many 
guests will be forced to travel, by car, to the local towns of Axrninster and Seaton for supplies, thus 
creating these many problems for the entire duration of the event (plus before and after for site vehicles).
o The application states that entry and exit will be from an entrance with good vis bility in both 
directions. The entrance to the site will be located just outside of the village boundary and approximately ½ 
mile away from the A35. The organisers have not provided evidence of any thought nor concern for the 
traffic problems beyond the immediate festival location. Indeed, with the road network as it is we believe 
the organisers must be responsible and accountable for ALL festival traffic THROUGHOUT the event (i.e. 
from and to the first and last site vehicle) up to the point it has left the village boundary and surrounding 
area* by way of STAFFED local traffic only zones within Kilmington and STAFFED traffic management on 

Details:

20/07/2021 Page 12 of 17Report Generated On: page 90



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

all A35 access points. Only by actively controlling the traffic at STAFFED checkpoints for the whole 
duration of the event, including before and after, can the organisers minimise the many safety risks and 
ensure due consideration and minimal impact for the village and surrounding area. Signboards will simply 
not suffice because with the volume of congestion likely to arise signboards will be ineffective and likely 
ignored by frustrated guests and site vehicles.

* by "village boundary" we mean the village enter/exit boards on the A35 and by "surrounding area" we 
mean the A358 at Musbury and A35 at Shute, so as not to shift the problem away from Kilmington and into 
other surrounding villages.

2. Hygiene and resultant environmental impact

The site in question has never hosted such as sizeable event and has no established facilities to cater for 
the hygiene of such a vast crowd for such a prolonged period of time.

As previously stated the venue is in very close proximity to residential properties and the village of 
Kilmington, plus numerous dairy farms and a fresh water source river, and as such the community is very 
concerned that there is a significant hygiene and environmental risk to the surrounding area and precious 
habitats.

3. Noise pollution and widespread disturbance and disruption

The venue is not in a rural location. It is in fact in very close proximity to many 100's of households. The 
villages of Kilmington, Whitford and Shute are known to have an older populations, some of which are are 
vulnerable and rely upon the quite nature of the villages for a comfortable quality of life.

The sudden and vastly unmanaged influx of 1,000+ guests and staff, not to mention the noise pollution, 
will undoubtedly have a seriously detrimental effect on the well-being of local residents and due to the 
close proximity will l kely cause distress and disturbance to a great many.

Additionally, the venue sits at an elevated position when compared to all surrounding villages and as such, 
combined with local geography, residents up to seven miles in distance** from the venue will be subject to 
significant noise pollution for what appears to be a very extended period of time.

** This fear is supported by the fact that on Friday 16th July 2021 residents of Musbury could hear music 
from an event at the Axminster show ground; that being the Yarty Party. The Axminster Show ground is at 
a much lower elevation and a far superior location, so it is absolutely reasonable to assume that an event 
at Cranberries such as the proposed will have a far worse and unreasonably detrimental effect on many 
more households.

In addition to private residences there are numerous working farms within close proximity to the proposed 
venue, two of which are dairy farms that which are l kely to have pregnant/calving heifers. The barns are 
close to the proposed venue and being in such a vulnerable state there is grave concern for the welfare of 
these animals as they would likely suffer great distress as the result of noise pollution and general 
disturbance.

4. Criminal activity

With any large scale event  there is the  risk  of  criminal  activity  in the surrounding  area;  not necessarily 
conducted by any person attending the event but by criminals freely travelling around and assessing local 
properties under the cover of the large number of visitors travelling to and from the event on a daily basis.

With the proposed location of this event being so close to the village boundary, and with no street lighting 
nor police presence, there is a genuine concern amongst local residents that an event such as this will 
encourage criminal activity in the area; be it during the event or soon afterwards (following evaluation of 
the area by criminals during the event). The village of Kilmington and  surrounding area are normally quiet 
and peaceful but the attendance of 1,000+ visitors would expose the area to unnecessary and 
unreasonable safety and security risks.

5. The track record of the venue

Cranberries has been a wedding venue for a number of years, although it operates at a fairly low capacity.

Despite this low capacity however there have been numerous incidents in recent years of guests causing 
disturbance to local households in early hours of the morning with fireworks, excessively loud music and 
shouting.

I have personally not reported any incident to the local authority but am aware that concerns have been 
raised with the applicant directly, however when challenged to account for and control the actions of their 
guests, the licence applicant, Mr Steven Belford Littley, has repeatedly denied any respons bility for guests 
staying at the venue. On one occasion the applicant stated that "I'm only in control of what I do" and the 
community is gravely concerned that this approach and attitude will further exacerbate the disruption and 
disturbance we will suffer.

With the history of the venue and track record of the licence applicant the community has good reason to 
be concerned about the hosting of and operating of this excessively large proposed event.

6. General misleading wording within the licence application

a) The applicant states that "We hope to sell approximately 1000 tickets, although previous events 

20/07/2021 Page 13 of 17Report Generated On: page 91



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

have never reached that capacity''. This suggestion that visitor numbers will be less than 1,000 (one can 
only assume for the purpose increasingly the l kelihood of the application being granted) is a complete 
fallacy - the event was sold out to maximum capacity before this application was submitted. The applicant 
would have known this prior to submitting the application and claim otherwise is therefore an untruth.
b) The applicant states that "Hawkwind hold this type of event regularly at various locations, and 
have had no complaints from the Police, Council or Local Residents". This may be the case but the 
statement is irrelevant to the application because there is no precedence at this specific location. Never 
before has such an inappropriate event been proposed nor held at this location so to any claim of previous 
events not generating complaints is, as stated, irrelevant. To date, the only "Hawkfest" event in the local 
area was a single night of live music in the small beer garden at The Old Inn in Kilmington in 2019, which 
was, coincidentally, run at the time by Mr Steven Belford Littley.  Attendance was no more than 100 
people, many of which were normal patrons of the establishment, and the music finished at 23:00. To draw 
any comparison to this small event to a five day music festival is simply not possible and as such a 
baseless claim and statement. Additionally, the applicant undoubtealy has a significant commercial 
interest in the success of this event which brings statements such as this into further question.
c) At no point does the application suggest any support nor marshalling will extend beyond the 
boundary of the festival site. Being in such unusually close proximity to a residential area (i.e. Kilmington)  
and the likely significant  disruption  this residential  area will suffer I  put it to the licencing committee that 
should the event proceed the organisers have a duty of care that extends beyond the festival site and into 
the parish of Kilmington, and as such they should be respons ble for the actions of all  attendees within the 
parish  of  Kilmington,  up to the border with the A35 for the entire duration of the licence duration by way 
of posted and staffed traffic restrictions and privately funded security staff conducting routine patrols 
throughout the parish to ensure social responsibility and compliance, much like they would within the 
venue boundary. Put simply, it is not fair nor right for this event to put such a burden on the local 
community.
d) The duration and timings of the event. As outlined in the application the premises will be open 
for guests from 12:00 Thursday 26th August 2021 to 00.00 Tuesday 31st  August. This is FIVE DAYS with 
FOUR DAYS of alcohol sales. As clearly stated, Cranberries is not located in a rural location - it is on the 
boundary of a residential area. Even worse are the proposed times - music for 20-hours a day to 2AM, with 
alcohol sales the same (except Thursday)! These proposed duration and times are simply ridiculous and 
local residents are very, very concerned about the significant disruption they will cause for a prolonged 
period of time. Indeed by comparison, the Yarty Party which is being held as I type this representation, in a 
far more suitable location (Axminster Show ground), is just three days in length and limited to 00:00.

In summary, to operate an event such as the proposed at the location listed is simply irresponsible and 
deeply inconsiderate. There are far more suitable venues in the local area, such as the Axminster Show 
ground, and trying to run such an event at the proposed location is bordering on the preposterous.

An event of this nature would have a detrimental effect on a many times more households than guests 
attending and I question how this can possibly be acceptable.

Lastly, I am sorry for the sheer length of this representation however the community feels very strongly on 
this matter and vehemently oppose the event proceeding at all.

Sincerely,

Simon and Samantha Buse
John and Jean Thorne

Evidence:

Suggestion:

20/07/2021 Page 14 of 17Report Generated On: page 92



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

Jean ThornePerson making Representation:

Representation Accepted:

Reason:

Representation has been accepted

19th July 2021

To whom it may concern,

Re: Licence application 052165, Hawkfest, EX13 7NS

As local residents we have grave concerns regarding the above detailed licence application and 
associated music festival proposal. The concerns are numerous but this representation highlights what we 
feel are some of the most serious.

1. The proposed location and vehicular access

The proposed site of this music festival is immediately adjacent to the boundary of the small, peaceful and 
picturesque village of Kilmington.   The only vehicular access to the site is immediately through the narrow, 
winding lanes of Kilmington, all of which intersect with a heavily congested traffic accident black spot along 
the A35.   These lanes have few passing places and simply are not suitable nor safe for the required 
access for such a large quantity of vehicles.

These lanes are also used by many pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders. Whitford Road, which would be 
the main access route for the event, is part of the cycle network and regularly used by cyclists and the 
significant volume of traffic which would undoubtedly be created by this event will pose a significant safety 
risk to these vulnerable road users.

As such, ourselves and many other local residents are very concerned about the significant volume of site 
and visitor traffic before, during and after the event. Knowing the road network as only experienced local 
residents can, vehicles will certainly congest the entire village as drivers seek alternative routes onto/off 
the A35 the congestion to access and leave the site. Not only will this cause significant access disruption 
and inconvenience for local residents but this exceptional volume of traffic have a serious and detrimental 
environmental and ecological impact on the surrounding area.

The sheer volume of additional traffic entering/exiting the A35 is also of grave concern. The three A35 
access roads within Kilmington (Whitford Road, Shute Road and The Hill) all enter a 50mph zone and all 
are recognised as very dangerous, with the Whitford Road being an accident black spot, sadly including 
numerous fatalities. During the tourist season the junctions are known to cause congestion on the A35 
also with tailbacks often extending in both directions of the A35.

As such, a significant increase in village traffic as a direct result of the festival will undoubtedly also have a 
huge impact on the congestion of the A35 and greatly increase the risk of more serious accidents and risk 
to life in the wider area.

It is the congestion on the A35 that will also cause the village to become gridlocked. During the tourist 
season it can often take individual motorists a number of minutes to enter the A35 from all three exit 
routes, especially if turning right. This regularly causes congestion at the junctions for local residents 
leaving the village in cars, so it is absolutely beyond doubt that the significant increase in car usage during 
the event and numerous facilities vehicles before, during and after, many of which will likely be oversized, 
will cause absolute gridlock within the village and surrounding areas, not to mention damage to the 
roadways, verges and residents property as vehicles struggle to manoeuvrer in such a confined village 
setting.

With regard to wording within the application, no allowances have been made for the above situations:-

o The application states that guests will be directed to a holding area off the public highway. 
Knowing the limited size of the venue, given that there is to be various designated sites for camping etc 
that will likely utilise the majority of the land space available, I challenge the event organisers to provide 
details of the capacity of the holding area.  Indeed, it is our suspicion that this holding area will not be 
sufficient for any and all eventualities of many guests arriving at the same time. It is fair to expect in 
excess of 500 guest vehicle, plus site traffic, and without scheduled arrival times we are very dubious as to 
the true ability to hold all arrival traffic away from the public highway.
o The application states that there will be no vehicle movement in the camping area when parked. 
This does not state that guest vehicles will be required to remain on-site during the event (i.e. access the 
public highway only upon arrival and departure). As such, the concerns regarding congestion in the village 
and on the A35, plus the safety and ecological concerns, are not limited to just arrival and departure days. 
Indeed, with the village facilities simply not sufficient to support 1,000+ guests for up to five days many 
guests will be forced to travel, by car, to the local towns of Axrninster and Seaton for supplies, thus 
creating these many problems for the entire duration of the event (plus before and after for site vehicles).
o The application states that entry and exit will be from an entrance with good vis bility in both 
directions. The entrance to the site will be located just outside of the village boundary and approximately ½ 
mile away from the A35. The organisers have not provided evidence of any thought nor concern for the 
traffic problems beyond the immediate festival location. Indeed, with the road network as it is we believe 
the organisers must be responsible and accountable for ALL festival traffic THROUGHOUT the event (i.e. 
from and to the first and last site vehicle) up to the point it has left the village boundary and surrounding 
area* by way of STAFFED local traffic only zones within Kilmington and STAFFED traffic management on 

Details:

20/07/2021 Page 15 of 17Report Generated On: page 93



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

all A35 access points. Only by actively controlling the traffic at STAFFED checkpoints for the whole 
duration of the event, including before and after, can the organisers minimise the many safety risks and 
ensure due consideration and minimal impact for the village and surrounding area. Signboards will simply 
not suffice because with the volume of congestion likely to arise signboards will be ineffective and likely 
ignored by frustrated guests and site vehicles.

* by "village boundary" we mean the village enter/exit boards on the A35 and by "surrounding area" we 
mean the A358 at Musbury and A35 at Shute, so as not to shift the problem away from Kilmington and into 
other surrounding villages.

2. Hygiene and resultant environmental impact

The site in question has never hosted such as sizeable event and has no established facilities to cater for 
the hygiene of such a vast crowd for such a prolonged period of time.

As previously stated the venue is in very close proximity to residential properties and the village of 
Kilmington, plus numerous dairy farms and a fresh water source river, and as such the community is very 
concerned that there is a significant hygiene and environmental risk to the surrounding area and precious 
habitats.

3. Noise pollution and widespread disturbance and disruption

The venue is not in a rural location. It is in fact in very close proximity to many 100's of households. The 
villages of Kilmington, Whitford and Shute are known to have an older populations, some of which are are 
vulnerable and rely upon the quite nature of the villages for a comfortable quality of life.

The sudden and vastly unmanaged influx of 1,000+ guests and staff, not to mention the noise pollution, 
will undoubtedly have a seriously detrimental effect on the well-being of local residents and due to the 
close proximity will l kely cause distress and disturbance to a great many.

Additionally, the venue sits at an elevated position when compared to all surrounding villages and as such, 
combined with local geography, residents up to seven miles in distance** from the venue will be subject to 
significant noise pollution for what appears to be a very extended period of time.

** This fear is supported by the fact that on Friday 16th July 2021 residents of Musbury could hear music 
from an event at the Axminster show ground; that being the Yarty Party. The Axminster Show ground is at 
a much lower elevation and a far superior location, so it is absolutely reasonable to assume that an event 
at Cranberries such as the proposed will have a far worse and unreasonably detrimental effect on many 
more households.

In addition to private residences there are numerous working farms within close proximity to the proposed 
venue, two of which are dairy farms that which are l kely to have pregnant/calving heifers. The barns are 
close to the proposed venue and being in such a vulnerable state there is grave concern for the welfare of 
these animals as they would likely suffer great distress as the result of noise pollution and general 
disturbance.

4. Criminal activity

With any large scale event  there is the  risk  of  criminal  activity  in the surrounding  area;  not necessarily 
conducted by any person attending the event but by criminals freely travelling around and assessing local 
properties under the cover of the large number of visitors travelling to and from the event on a daily basis.

With the proposed location of this event being so close to the village boundary, and with no street lighting 
nor police presence, there is a genuine concern amongst local residents that an event such as this will 
encourage criminal activity in the area; be it during the event or soon afterwards (following evaluation of 
the area by criminals during the event). The village of Kilmington and  surrounding area are normally quiet 
and peaceful but the attendance of 1,000+ visitors would expose the area to unnecessary and 
unreasonable safety and security risks.

5. The track record of the venue

Cranberries has been a wedding venue for a number of years, although it operates at a fairly low capacity.

Despite this low capacity however there have been numerous incidents in recent years of guests causing 
disturbance to local households in early hours of the morning with fireworks, excessively loud music and 
shouting.

I have personally not reported any incident to the local authority but am aware that concerns have been 
raised with the applicant directly, however when challenged to account for and control the actions of their 
guests, the licence applicant, Mr Steven Belford Littley, has repeatedly denied any respons bility for guests 
staying at the venue. On one occasion the applicant stated that "I'm only in control of what I do" and the 
community is gravely concerned that this approach and attitude will further exacerbate the disruption and 
disturbance we will suffer.

With the history of the venue and track record of the licence applicant the community has good reason to 
be concerned about the hosting of and operating of this excessively large proposed event.

6. General misleading wording within the licence application

a) The applicant states that "We hope to sell approximately 1000 tickets, although previous events 

20/07/2021 Page 16 of 17Report Generated On: page 94



Application No: 052165

Premises: Hawkfest
Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, AXMINSTER, Devon, EX13 7NS.

have never reached that capacity''. This suggestion that visitor numbers will be less than 1,000 (one can 
only assume for the purpose increasingly the l kelihood of the application being granted) is a complete 
fallacy - the event was sold out to maximum capacity before this application was submitted. The applicant 
would have known this prior to submitting the application and claim otherwise is therefore an untruth.
b) The applicant states that "Hawkwind hold this type of event regularly at various locations, and 
have had no complaints from the Police, Council or Local Residents". This may be the case but the 
statement is irrelevant to the application because there is no precedence at this specific location. Never 
before has such an inappropriate event been proposed nor held at this location so to any claim of previous 
events not generating complaints is, as stated, irrelevant. To date, the only "Hawkfest" event in the local 
area was a single night of live music in the small beer garden at The Old Inn in Kilmington in 2019, which 
was, coincidentally, run at the time by Mr Steven Belford Littley.  Attendance was no more than 100 
people, many of which were normal patrons of the establishment, and the music finished at 23:00. To draw 
any comparison to this small event to a five day music festival is simply not possible and as such a 
baseless claim and statement. Additionally, the applicant undoubtealy has a significant commercial 
interest in the success of this event which brings statements such as this into further question.
c) At no point does the application suggest any support nor marshalling will extend beyond the 
boundary of the festival site. Being in such unusually close proximity to a residential area (i.e. Kilmington)  
and the likely significant  disruption  this residential  area will suffer I  put it to the licencing committee that 
should the event proceed the organisers have a duty of care that extends beyond the festival site and into 
the parish of Kilmington, and as such they should be respons ble for the actions of all  attendees within the 
parish  of  Kilmington,  up to the border with the A35 for the entire duration of the licence duration by way 
of posted and staffed traffic restrictions and privately funded security staff conducting routine patrols 
throughout the parish to ensure social responsibility and compliance, much like they would within the 
venue boundary. Put simply, it is not fair nor right for this event to put such a burden on the local 
community.
d) The duration and timings of the event. As outlined in the application the premises will be open 
for guests from 12:00 Thursday 26th August 2021 to 00.00 Tuesday 31st  August. This is FIVE DAYS with 
FOUR DAYS of alcohol sales. As clearly stated, Cranberries is not located in a rural location - it is on the 
boundary of a residential area. Even worse are the proposed times - music for 20-hours a day to 2AM, with 
alcohol sales the same (except Thursday)! These proposed duration and times are simply ridiculous and 
local residents are very, very concerned about the significant disruption they will cause for a prolonged 
period of time. Indeed by comparison, the Yarty Party which is being held as I type this representation, in a 
far more suitable location (Axminster Show ground), is just three days in length and limited to 00:00.

In summary, to operate an event such as the proposed at the location listed is simply irresponsible and 
deeply inconsiderate. There are far more suitable venues in the local area, such as the Axminster Show 
ground, and trying to run such an event at the proposed location is bordering on the preposterous.

An event of this nature would have a detrimental effect on a many times more households than guests 
attending and I question how this can possibly be acceptable.

Lastly, I am sorry for the sheer length of this representation however the community feels very strongly on 
this matter and vehemently oppose the event proceeding at all.

Sincerely,

Simon and Samantha Buse
John and Jean Thorne

Evidence:

Suggestion:

20/07/2021 Page 17 of 17Report Generated On: page 95



APPENDIX G 
 
 

Hawkfest, Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, EX13 7NS  
Responses to Notice of Hearing 

 
Applicant             
 

Mr Steven Littley                Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington EX13 7NS 
Hearing Unnecessary  Not completed 
Attending Yes  

Request for Kris Tait to be at the hearing. Kris Tait is from the 
Hawkfest event management team. 

Email Address  
Supporting documents None 
Summary of key points Key points are detailed in the applicants licence application. 

 
Responsible Authority – None to be entered 
 

1. None 
Hearing Unnecessary  N/A 
Attending N/A 
Email Address N/A 
Supporting documents N/A 
Summary of key points N/A 

 
Interested Parties 
 

1. Mr Richard Quincey      REDACTED 
Hearing Unnecessary  No 
Attending No but requesting Peter Ball, Kilmington Parish Councillor to 

represent Mrs Quincey.  
“As a parish councillor, familiar with procedure, Peter Ball will be 
able to succinctly summarise the key concerns that I have 
regarding this specific event and present the supporting evidence 
that I have provided in a fair and constructive manner within the 
time allotted.” 
Contact details of Mr Peter Ball: Mobile: REDACTED 

Email Address REDACTED 
Supporting documents Detailed response on noise nuisance (The Noise Council Code of 

Practice 1995) 
The applicant has provided ‘a noise complaint procedure’ and 
states that the event will be in accordance with The Noise Council 
Code of Practice 1995.  
It is helpful to receive this statement from the applicant; however 
the statement is not compliant with the Code.  
 
 
 
 
In summary:  

page 96



APPENDIX G 
 

• Code clause 3.1 note 5 … the MNL should be no more than 5 
dBA above the background noise level. I have taken background 
noise readings in the village over several evenings … the 
background noise level is 30 - 33 dBA LAeq 15min supporting my 
statement that Kilmington is a very quiet location.  
 
Thus the MNL target should be set at no more than 38 dBA LAeq 
15min.  
 
• Code clause 3.4 highlights the issue of low frequency noise … 
assessment of noise in terms of dB(A) is very convenient but it 
can underestimate the intrusiveness of low frequency noise. 
Furthermore, low frequency noise can be very noticeable indoors. 
Thus, even if the dB(A) guideline is being met, unreasonable 
disturbance may be occurring because of the low frequency 
noise. With certain types of events, therefore, it may be 
necessary to set an additional criterion in terms of low frequency 
noise, or apply additional control conditions.  
 
The 2021 Yarty Party held in recent hot weather on Trafalgar way 
was 1200m from the edge of the village; it was audible and low 
frequency noise was a nuisance in the prevailing wind conditions 
(wind can add 10+ dB).  
 
The Hawkfest event will be only 200m from the nearest village 
houses so it is highly likely low frequency noise may cause 
prolonged, significant public nuisance if it is not very carefully 
addressed, especially as the event will be outdoors and not 
indoors as applied for.  
 
Clause 3.4 note 2 recommends the following … a level up to 70 
dB in either of the 63 Hz or 125 Hz octave frequency band is 
satisfactory; a level of 80 dB or more in either of those octave 
frequency bands causes significant disturbance. 
 
Thus targets at 63 & 125 Hz should be set at no more than 70 dB.  
 
• Clause 3.4 note 3.11 recommends … some concerts are 
accompanied by associated activities (eg fairgrounds) which can 
be noisy. These should be taken into account when setting the 
limit for the music noise level.  
 
I am surprised the organisers haven’t sited the event at the 
Axminster show-ground which is well suited to events of this type 
(music & camping) and is similar to their previous Hawkfest 
locations as that site is reasonably distanced from all residential 
areas. 

Summary of key points Which of the four licensing objectives does your 
representation relate: 

page 97



APPENDIX G 
 

I would like to make it clear that I do not object to events at Hills 
Farm per se; B&B, daytime outdoor horse events, weddings and 
indoor evening events occur with only occasional disturbance and 
I wish the business well. 
However I note that this licensing application is for an indoor 
event of 1000 people; it is clear that this cannot be 
accommodated in existing indoor accommodation and an 
outdoor event using a marquee is likely so the application in 
this respect is misleading & inaccurate. 
 
Public Safety 
a. Vehicle access through the village. Large scale additional 
vehicle movements by visitors represent a risk at A35 “blackspot” 
junctions into the village and the likelihood of queues impacting 
residents and existing commercial & farm traffic on the Whitford 
Road, residents walking within the village (where there are no 
pavements) and cyclists on the national cycle route.  
 
Lower speed limits at the A35 junction & through the village need 
to considered and side roads need to be closed to visitors (sat 
nav currently leads Rhea Farm campers to the sewage works on 
a daily basis!). 
 
b. Pollution of watercourses; Dirty run-off from an event of this 
size and exiting vehicles could cause significant environmental 
damage;  
 
A clear plan, especially in the event of wet weather, is needed to 
prevent waste & mud impacting watercourses and Whitford Road.  
 
c. Waste / litter generated by 1000 people consuming alcohol 
and food for 3 days and from their pets fouling local lanes (see 
advertising … a fun dog show is planned).  
 
A clear waste management plan (ideally with recycling) should be 
enacted. For pets a designated area on-site for pet fouling needs 
to be provided and visitors informed that fouling in the Parish is 
prohibited.  
 
d. 1000 people for 3 days will require a significant water supply 
and waste infrastructure.  
 
As this event is larger than the population of Kilmington the 
existing water & waste infrastructure is unlikely to meet demand. 
The impact on infrastructure should be reviewed with Southwest 
Water. 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 

page 98



APPENDIX G 
 

b. Noise. The applied-for hours of operation are three days 
running 10am to 2am. The event date is set for for a bank holiday 
weekend in August. Hot weather would mean residents will also 
need to have windows open at night to stay cool. Low frequency 
noise and bass beat is highly likely to be a nuisance and impact 
amenity as the background noise level in Kilmington, especially at 
night, is very low and the event is within 200m of resident’s 
homes.  
 
Noise sources need to be pointed away from homes, and noise 
levels should fully meet the requirements of The Noise Council 
Code of Practice 1995 respecting the background noise level - 
see attached detailed statement.  
 
c. Light pollution. Kilmington has no street lights and has strict 
planning requirements (bats etc) as it is a dark village. The event 
could cause light pollution and disturb local wildlife.  
 
Lighting & glare should be minimised (e.g. stage/strong lighting 
only inside tents) and be directed away from the village. 
 

 
2. Mrs Louise Quincey  REDACTED 
Hearing Unnecessary  No 
Attending No but requesting Peter Ball, Kilmington Parish Councillor to 

represent Mrs Quincey.  
“As a parish councillor, familiar with procedure, Peter Ball will be 
able to succinctly summarise the key concerns that I have 
regarding this specific event and present the supporting evidence 
that I have provided in a fair and constructive manner within the 
time allotted.” 
Contact details of Mr Peter Ball: Mobile: REDACTED 

Email Address REDACTED 
Supporting documents Detailed response on noise nuisance (The Noise Council Code of 

Practice 1995) 
The applicant has provided ‘a noise complaint procedure’ and 
states that the event will be in accordance with The Noise Council 
Code of Practice 1995.  
It is helpful to receive this statement from the applicant; however 
the statement is not compliant with the Code.  
 
In summary:  
• Code clause 3.1 note 5 … the MNL should be no more than 5 
dBA above the background noise level.  
 
 
I have taken background noise readings in the village over 
several evenings … the background noise level is 30 - 33 dBA 

page 99



APPENDIX G 
 

LAeq 15min supporting my statement that Kilmington is a very 
quiet location.  
 
Thus the MNL target should be set at no more than 38 dBA LAeq 
15min.  
 
• Code clause 3.4 highlights the issue of low frequency noise … 
assessment of noise in terms of dB(A) is very convenient but it 
can underestimate the intrusiveness of low frequency noise. 
Furthermore, low frequency noise can be very noticeable indoors. 
Thus, even if the dB(A) guideline is being met, unreasonable 
disturbance may be occurring because of the low frequency 
noise. With certain types of events, therefore, it may be 
necessary to set an additional criterion in terms of low frequency 
noise, or apply additional control conditions.  
 
The 2021 Yarty Party held in recent hot weather on Trafalgar way 
was 1200m from the edge of the village; it was audible and low 
frequency noise was a nuisance in the prevailing wind conditions 
(wind can add 10+ dB).  
 
The Hawkfest event will be only 200m from the nearest village 
houses so it is highly likely low frequency noise may cause 
prolonged, significant public nuisance if it is not very carefully 
addressed, especially as the event will be outdoors and not 
indoors as applied for.  
 
Clause 3.4 note 2 recommends the following … a level up to 70 
dB in either of the 63 Hz or 125 Hz octave frequency band is 
satisfactory; a level of 80 dB or more in either of those octave 
frequency bands causes significant disturbance. 
 
Thus targets at 63 & 125 Hz should be set at no more than 70 dB.  
 
• Clause 3.4 note 3.11 recommends … some concerts are 
accompanied by associated activities (eg fairgrounds) which can 
be noisy. These should be taken into account when setting the 
limit for the music noise level.  
 
I am surprised the organisers haven’t sited the event at the 
Axminster show-ground which is well suited to events of this type 
(music & camping) and is similar to their previous Hawkfest 
locations as that site is reasonably distanced from all residential 
areas. 

 
 
 
Summary of key points 
 

 
 
Which of the four licensing objectives does your 
representation relate: 

page 100



APPENDIX G 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I would like to make it clear that I do not object to events at Hills 
Farm per se; B&B, daytime outdoor horse events, weddings and 
indoor evening events occur with only occasional disturbance and 
I wish the business well. 
However I note that this licensing application is for an indoor 
event of 1000 people; it is clear that this cannot be 
accommodated in existing indoor accommodation and an 
outdoor event using a marquee is likely so the application in 
this respect is misleading & inaccurate. 
 
Public Safety 
a. Vehicle access through the village. Large scale additional 
vehicle movements by visitors represent a risk at A35 “blackspot” 
junctions into the village and the likelihood of queues impacting 
residents and existing commercial & farm traffic on the Whitford 
Road, residents walking within the village (where there are no 
pavements) and cyclists on the national cycle route.  
 
Lower speed limits at the A35 junction & through the village need 
to considered and side roads need to be closed to visitors (sat 
nav currently leads Rhea Farm campers to the sewage works on 
a daily basis!). 
 
b. Pollution of watercourses; Dirty run-off from an event of this 
size and exiting vehicles could cause significant environmental 
damage;  
 
A clear plan, especially in the event of wet weather, is needed to 
prevent waste & mud impacting watercourses and Whitford Road.  
 
c. Waste / litter generated by 1000 people consuming alcohol 
and food for 3 days and from their pets fouling local lanes (see 
advertising … a fun dog show is planned).  
 
A clear waste management plan (ideally with recycling) should be 
enacted. For pets a designated area on-site for pet fouling needs 
to be provided and visitors informed that fouling in the Parish is 
prohibited.  
 
d. 1000 people for 3 days will require a significant water supply 
and waste infrastructure.  
 
As this event is larger than the population of Kilmington the 
existing water & waste infrastructure is unlikely to meet demand. 
The impact on infrastructure should be reviewed with Southwest 
Water. 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 

page 101



APPENDIX G 
 

b. Noise. The applied-for hours of operation are three days 
running 10am to 2am. The event date is set for for a bank holiday 
weekend in August. Hot weather would mean residents will also 
need to have windows open at night to stay cool. Low frequency 
noise and bass beat is highly likely to be a nuisance and impact 
amenity as the background noise level in Kilmington, especially at 
night, is very low and the event is within 200m of resident’s 
homes.  
 
Noise sources need to be pointed away from homes, and noise 
levels should fully meet the requirements of The Noise Council 
Code of Practice 1995 respecting the background noise level - 
see attached detailed statement.  
 
c. Light pollution. Kilmington has no street lights and has strict 
planning requirements (bats etc) as it is a dark village. The event 
could cause light pollution and disturb local wildlife.  
 
Lighting & glare should be minimised (e.g. stage/strong lighting 
only inside tents) and be directed away from the village. 
 

 
3. Kilmington Parish Council (C/O Adrian Jenkins)   

REDACTED 
Hearing Unnecessary  No 
Attending Yes – Peter Ball on behalf of Kilmington Parish Council 
Email Address REDACTED 
Supporting documents A35 Accident Data – See Appendix G1 

A35 Average Daily Traffic – See Appendix G2 
Summary of key points Public Safety 

1. Routing of Hawkfest Vehicles To improve safety and reduce 
nuisance for residents and their children, all Hawfest vehicles 
should be directed from A35 to only use Whitford Road as site 
access. This would avoid additional traffic on narrow roads 
through the central residential area of the village thereby avoiding 
some nuisance and improving safety for pedestrians and cyclists: 
•Directions to festival goers: Organisers have kindly offered to 
send directions and a map with Festival tickets;  
•Route signage: Can the organisers please provide clear direction 
signage ‘To Hawkfest’ and ‘Hawkfest No Access’ on 
-A35 the three appropriate A35 junctions to direct vehicles to the 
Festival only via The Whitford Road; 
-Whitford Road at the three junctions of: The Street; the 
quarry/residential/Cycle Route 33 road and the residential lane 
opposite Hills Farm.   
 
 
 
2. Introduction of temporary speed limits or ‘Slow’ signs:  

page 102



APPENDIX G 
 

•A35 It would make sense to introduce a temporary A35 speed 
limit reduction from 50mph to 30mph through the village or police 
‘SLOW’ signs displayed over the weekend. This would improve 
safety around the busy Kilmington Cross junction by slowing 
through vehicles giving cars, vans and caravans more time to 
enter and exit Whitford Road. It would also improve safety for 
residents and Festival pedestrians crossing the A35 to the farm 
shop and café.  
 
•Whitford Road A temporary speed limit reduction from 30mph to 
20mph should be introduced or police ‘SLOW’ signs displayed 
over the weekend. This would slow vehicles on this narrow road 
which has no pavements or lighting and has high banks in places. 
This would improve safety for Festival drivers unfamiliar with the 
road, horse riders, cyclists and pedestrians, particularly festival 
goers on foot, who don’t know the road and perhaps are 
unfamiliar with walking on narrow country roads without 
pavements. 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
1. Music played outside or in a marquee:  
 
We suggest that, at a minimum, the published Environmental 
Health policies and times should be enforced. This will reduce the 
nuisance.  (https://eastdevon.gov.uk/environmental-health-and-
wellbeing/noise/noise-guidance-and-advice/guidance-and-advice-
for-applicants-for-temporary-event-notices/ ):  
•Live music must finish by 23.00 
•Recorded amplified music must be turned down between 23.00 
and midnight 
•After midnight, background music is permitted but must not be 
audible beyond the site boundary 
•music noise levels do not exceed those as specified in full in The 
Noise Council Code of Practice 1995. 
 
2. Live music being played inside the buildings:  
 
We have no objection to live music being played inside the 
buildings until 02.00 providing the music noise levels do not 
exceed those as specified in full in The Noise Council Code of 
Practice 1995. 
 
3. Routing of Hawkfest Vehicles (as Public Safety 1. Above)  
 
To reduce nuisance and improve safety for residents and their 
children, all Hawkfest vehicles should be directed from A35 to 
only use Whitford Road as the site access.  
 

page 103



APPENDIX G 
 

This would avoid additional traffic on narrow roads through the 
central residential area of the village thereby avoiding some 
nuisance and improving safety for pedestrians and cyclists.  
•Directions to festival goers: Organisers have kindly offered to 
send directions and a map with Festival tickets;  
•Route signage: Can the organisers please also provide clear 
direction signage ‘To Hawkfest’ and ‘Hawkfest No Access’ on 
-A35 the three appropriate A35 junctions to direct vehicles to the 
Festival only via The Whitford Road; 
-Whitford Road at the three junctions of: The Street; the 
quarry/residential/Cycle Route 33 road and the residential lane 
opposite Hills Farm.   
 
Protection of children from harm 
Please refer to Public Safety points 1. and 2. above as these 
measures will also help protect children from harm. 
 

 
4. Mr Simon Buse     REDACTED 
Hearing Unnecessary  No 
Attending No - but requesting Peter Ball, Kilmington Parish Councillor to 

represent Mr Buse 
 
As a standing member of the Kilmington Parish Council Peter Ball 
already represents my interest within this community. Additionally, 
whilst investigating this licence proposal Peter has researched 
and gained a very good knowledge of the procedure involved.  

Email Address REDACTED 
Supporting documents None 
Summary of key points Public Safety 

The increased volume of traffic in and around Kilmington and 
leaving/joining the A35 is of grave concern for the safety of 
pedestrians, cyclists and other road users. We therefore desire 
the placement signage to direct all festival traffic to use only 
Whitford Road, plus "No Entry to festival traffic” signs at the 
junction of Whitford Road/The Street. The village and surrounding 
area is popular with walkers and cyclists, more so with the festival 
guests, however there are no street lights, crossing points nor 
pavements. As such we also desire a temporary speed limit 
reduction of 30mph on the A35 and 20mph on Whitford Road to 
minimise the risk of traffic incidents. 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
The proposed music licence times are at odds with the 
Environmental Health policies. As such, by way of preventing 
public nuisance I request that at a minimum the published 
Environmental Health policies and times be enforced, as detailed 
by Peter Ball.  

page 104



APPENDIX G 
 

Additionally, the licence application infers the event will be held 
"indoors". It has since transpired that the main venue will be a 
"big-top" tent which does not have the acoustic sound deadening 
of a solid structure. As such I request sound pollution be 
controlled in a manner appropriate for a tented temporary 
structure rather than a solid structure.  
Also, there is some confusion regarding the onsite water supply 
because local knowledge is not aware of mains water being 
available onsite. Without mains water there is concern 
surrounding hygiene levels and the potential of pollution as the 
result of insufficient drainage, both of which could cause public 
nuisance outside of the event boundaries. I therefore respectfully 
request reassurance surrounding this concern. 
 
Protection of Children from Harm 
It is understood that the event will be held in a family friendly 
manor however the road safety as described above is of concern. 
The village is normally a very quiet area with minimal traffic and of 
that traffic the majority are local drivers who are familiar with the 
area and know to take care.  
Families often walk around the area and children of an 
appropriate age use the roads unsupervised. If not correctly 
managed the increased volume of traffic, including large 
caravans/camper vans, driven by individuals not familiar with 
narrow lanes, there would be a risk to child road users could 
come to harm 

 
5. Mrs Samantha Buse  REDACTED 
Hearing Unnecessary  No 
Attending No - but requesting Peter Ball, Kilmington Parish Councillor to 

represent Mrs Buse 
 
As a standing member of the Kilmington Parish Council Peter Ball 
already represents my interest within this community. Additionally, 
whilst investigating this licence proposal Peter has researched 
and gained a very good knowledge of the procedure involved. 

Email Address  REDACTED  
Supporting documents None 
Summary of key points Public Safety 

The increased volume of traffic in and around Kilmington and 
leaving/joining the A35 is of grave concern for the safety of 
pedestrians, cyclists and other road users. We therefore desire 
the placement signage to direct all festival traffic to use only 
Whitford Road, plus "No Entry to festival traffic” signs at the 
junction of Whitford Road/The Street. The village and surrounding 
area is popular with walkers and cyclists, more so with the festival 
guests, however there are no street lights, crossing points nor 
pavements. 

page 105



APPENDIX G 
 

As such we also desire a temporary speed limit reduction of 
30mph on the A35 and 20mph on Whitford Road to minimise the 
risk of traffic incidents. 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
The proposed music licence times are at odds with the 
Environmental Health policies. As such, by way of preventing 
public nuisance I request that at a minimum the published 
Environmental Health policies and times be enforced, as detailed 
by Peter Ball.  
Additionally, the licence application infers the event will be held 
"indoors". It has since transpired that the main venue will be a 
"big-top" tent which does not have the acoustic sound deadening 
of a solid structure. As such I request sound pollution be 
controlled in a manner appropriate for a tented temporary 
structure rather than a solid structure.  
Also, there is some confusion regarding the onsite water supply 
because local knowledge is not aware of mains water being 
available onsite. Without mains water there is concern 
surrounding hygiene levels and the potential of pollution as the 
result of insufficient drainage, both of which could cause public 
nuisance outside of the event boundaries. I therefore respectfully 
request reassurance surrounding this concern. 
 
Protection of Children from Harm 
It is understood that the event will be held in a family friendly 
manor however the road safety as described above is of concern. 
The village is normally a very quiet area with minimal traffic and of 
that traffic the majority are local drivers who are familiar with the 
area and know to take care.  
Families often walk around the area and children of an 
appropriate age use the roads unsupervised. If not correctly 
managed the increased volume of traffic, including large 
caravans/camper vans, driven by individuals not familiar with 
narrow lanes, there would be a risk to child road users could 
come to harm 

 
6. Mr John Thorne    REDACTED 
Hearing Unnecessary  No 
Attending No - but requesting Peter Ball, Kilmington Parish Councillor to 

represent Mr Thorne 
 
As a standing member of the Kilmington Parish Council Peter Ball 
already represents my interest within this community. Additionally, 
whilst investigating this licence proposal Peter has researched 
and gained a very good knowledge of the procedure involved. 

Email Address REDACTED 
Supporting documents None 
  

page 106



APPENDIX G 
 

Summary of key points Public Safety 
The increased volume of traffic in and around Kilmington and 
leaving/joining the A35 is of grave concern for the safety of 
pedestrians, cyclists and other road users. We therefore desire 
the placement signage to direct all festival traffic to use only 
Whitford Road, plus "No Entry to festival traffic” signs at the 
junction of Whitford Road/The Street. The village and surrounding 
area is popular with walkers and cyclists, more so with the festival 
guests, however there are no street lights, crossing points nor 
pavements. As such we also desire a temporary speed limit 
reduction of 30mph on the A35 and 20mph on Whitford Road to 
minimise the risk of traffic incidents. 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
The proposed music licence times are at odds with the 
Environmental Health policies. As such, by way of preventing 
public nuisance I request that at a minimum the published 
Environmental Health policies and times be enforced, as detailed 
by Peter Ball.  
Additionally, the licence application infers the event will be held 
"indoors". It has since transpired that the main venue will be a 
"big-top" tent which does not have the acoustic sound deadening 
of a solid structure. As such I request sound pollution be 
controlled in a manner appropriate for a tented temporary 
structure rather than a solid structure.  
Also, there is some confusion regarding the onsite water supply 
because local knowledge is not aware of mains water being 
available onsite. Without mains water there is concern 
surrounding hygiene levels and the potential of pollution as the 
result of insufficient drainage, both of which could cause public 
nuisance outside of the event boundaries. I therefore respectfully 
request reassurance surrounding this concern. 
 
Protection of Children from Harm 
It is understood that the event will be held in a family friendly 
manor however the road safety as described above is of concern. 
The village is normally a very quiet area with minimal traffic and of 
that traffic the majority are local drivers who are familiar with the 
area and know to take care.  
Families often walk around the area and children of an 
appropriate age use the roads unsupervised. If not correctly 
managed the increased volume of traffic, including large 
caravans/camper vans, driven by individuals not familiar with 
narrow lanes, there would be a risk to child road users could 
come to harm 

 
 
 
 

page 107



APPENDIX G 
 

 
7. Mrs Jean Thorne   REDACTED 
Hearing Unnecessary  No 
Attending No - but requesting Peter Ball, Kilmington Parish Councillor to 

represent Mrs Thorne. 
 
As a standing member of the Kilmington Parish Council Peter Ball 
already represents my interest within this community. Additionally, 
whilst investigating this licence proposal Peter has researched 
and gained a very good knowledge of the procedure involved. 

Email Address REDACTED 
Supporting documents None 
Summary of key points Public Safety 

The increased volume of traffic in and around Kilmington and 
leaving/joining the A35 is of grave concern for the safety of 
pedestrians, cyclists and other road users. We therefore desire 
the placement signage to direct all festival traffic to use only 
Whitford Road, plus "No Entry to festival traffic” signs at the 
junction of Whitford Road/The Street. The village and surrounding 
area is popular with walkers and cyclists, more so with the festival 
guests, however there are no street lights, crossing points nor 
pavements. As such we also desire a temporary speed limit 
reduction of 30mph on the A35 and 20mph on Whitford Road to 
minimise the risk of traffic incidents. 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
The proposed music licence times are at odds with the 
Environmental Health policies. As such, by way of preventing 
public nuisance I request that at a minimum the published 
Environmental Health policies and times be enforced, as detailed 
by Peter Ball.  
Additionally, the licence application infers the event will be held 
"indoors". It has since transpired that the main venue will be a 
"big-top" tent which does not have the acoustic sound deadening 
of a solid structure. As such I request sound pollution be 
controlled in a manner appropriate for a tented temporary 
structure rather than a solid structure.  
Also, there is some confusion regarding the onsite water supply 
because local knowledge is not aware of mains water being 
available onsite. Without mains water there is concern 
surrounding hygiene levels and the potential of pollution as the 
result of insufficient drainage, both of which could cause public 
nuisance outside of the event boundaries. I therefore respectfully 
request reassurance surrounding this concern. 
 
Protection of Children from Harm 
It is understood that the event will be held in a family friendly 
manor however the road safety as described above is of concern.  

page 108



APPENDIX G 
 

The village is normally a very quiet area with minimal traffic and of 
that traffic the majority are local drivers who are familiar with the 
area and know to take care.  
Families often walk around the area and children of an 
appropriate age use the roads unsupervised. If not correctly 
managed the increased volume of traffic, including large 
caravans/camper vans, driven by individuals not familiar with 
narrow lanes, there would be a risk to child road users could 
come to harm 
 

 

page 109



A35 Accident Data through Kilmington – Reported Only (boundary to boundary) 

 

 

 
Accident Data A35 through Kilmington (boundary to boundary)  

  

 
Years 2009 to 2019 

      

 
Road Distance metres 2965 

     Count Acc. No Date Cat Vehcs Casuly Time Notes   

1 1 14/03/2009 Sli 2 1 11.18 
  2 2 20/12/2011 Sli 1 1 17.00 1 Ped 

 3 3 14/05/2011 Sli 2 1 15.40 
  4 4 30/10/2009 Sli 3 3 18.51 2 OAPs 

 5 5 22/11/2012 Sli 2 1 11.23 
  6 6 15/12/2011 Sli 4 3 10.54 
  7 7 16/01/2011 Sli 1 2 4.15 
  8 8 04/08/2010 Sli 1 1 11.38 
  9 9 03/04/2009 Sli 3 3 12.58 1 Child 

 10 10 21/12/2012 Sli 3 1 14.08 
  11 11 30/08/2013 Sli 2 1 12.30 1 OAP 

 12 12 22/04/2012 Sli 4 2 15.55 1 Child 
 13 13 10/04/2009 Sli 1 1 0.23 1 Ped 
 14 14 25/10/2013 Sli 1 1 23.48 

  15 15 09/04/2009 Sli 2 1 16.17 
  16 16 13/09/2012 Ser 2 2 12.50 
  17 17 02/11/2010 Ser 2 3 12.22 3 OAP 

 18 18 21/05/2010 Sli 3 1 14.48 
  19 19 09/10/2009 Sli 1 1 14.15 1 OAP/Ped 

 20 20 29/03/2013 Sli 2 1 17.00 1 OAP 
 21 21 03/09/2009 Sli 2 2 16.15 

  22 22 06/03/2009 Sli 2 2 12.40 1 Child 
 23 23 29/09/2012 Sli 2 2 9.30 

  24 24 18/07/2009 Sli 2 1 12.30 
  

page 110



A35 Accident Data through Kilmington – Reported Only (boundary to boundary) 

 

25 25 04/02/2011 Sli 2 1 19.50 
  26 26 20/09/2013 Sli 3 1 16.54 
  27 27 11/04/2010 Sli 2 1 12.39 
  28 28 31/07/2009 Ser 2 2 17.34 
  29 29 31/10/2011 Sli 1 1 7.50 
  30 30 08/10/2009 Sli 2 1 8.32 
  31 31 04/06/2012 Sli 2 4 10.15 1 Child 

 32 32 08/06/2013 Sli 2 1 11.15 
  33 33 02/02/2009 Sli 2 1 10.50 
  34 34 27/04/2014 Sli 2 1 

   35 35 30/01/2014 Sli 2 2 
   36 36 19/08/2014 Sli 2 5 
   37 37 16/06/2014 Sli 2 2 
   38 38 15/01/2014 Sli 2 1 
   39 39 30/04/2014 Sli 2 1 
   40 40 21/08/2014 Fatal 1 1 
   41 41 01/07/2014 Ser 2 2 
   42 42 28/04/2014 Ser 2 1 
   43 43 01/03/2014 Sli 2 4 
   44 44 05/06/2014 Sli 2 1 
   45 45 29/03/2015 Ser 2 2 
   46 46 28/09/2015 Sli 4 5 
   47 47 16/09/2015 Sli 2 2 
   48 48 08/08/2015 Ser 4 2 
   49 49 22/01/2015 Sli 2 3 
   50 50 25/09/2015 Sli 2 1 
   51 51 27/02/2015 Sli 2 2 
   52 52 29/10/2015 Sli 2 2 
   53 53 09/04/2016 Sli 2 2 
   54 54 08/05/2016 Sli 2 1 
   

page 111



A35 Accident Data through Kilmington – Reported Only (boundary to boundary) 

 

55 55 02/07/2016 Sli 3 1 
   56 56 19/07/2016 Sli 2 1 
   57 57 01/03/2017 Sli 4 1 
   58 58 06/04/2017 Ser 3 1 
   59 59 28/06/2017 Ser 2 4 
   60 60 10/08/2017 Ser 2 4 
   61 61 12/08/2017 Ser 2 3 
   62 62 20/10/2017 Sli 3 1 
   63 63 17/01/2018 Sli 2 1 
   64 64 19/02/2018 Sli 3 3 
   65 65 24/04/2018 Sli 2 1 
   66 66 16/06/2018 Ser 3 2 
   67 67 19/07/2018 Sli 2 1 
   68 68 05/10/2018 Sli 2 1 
   69 69 10/03/2019 Sli 2 2 
   

70 70 29/04/2019 Fatal 2 2 
 

One Fatal 
one Serious 

 71 71 08/05/2019 Sli 2 1 
   72 72 01/07/2019 Sli 1 1 
   73 73 18/07/2019 Ser 2 2 
   74 74 31/07/2019 Sli 2 1 
   75 75 07/08/2019 Sli 2 2 
   76 76 23/08/2019 Sli 2 3 
   77 77 28/09/2019 Sli 2 1 
   78 78 23/11/2019 Ser 2 1 
   

         

 
2009-2019 TOTAL 

 
167 135 

   Injury Accident rate per 100mvkm 52.42 
  

         

page 112



A35 Accident Data through Kilmington – Reported Only (boundary to boundary) 

 

 

page 113



A35 Accident Data through Kilmington – Reported Only (boundary to boundary) 

 

 

page 114



A35 Average Annual Daily Traffic -Vehicles at Wilmington (adjacent village to Kilmington) 

 

 

Number of vehicles increases during: daylight hours, summer tourist period, at bank holidays and recently through ‘staycation’  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

page 115



A35 Average Annual Daily Traffic -Vehicles at Wilmington (adjacent village to Kilmington) 

 
 

 

 

page 116



 

East Devon – an outstanding place   Chief Executive: Mark R Williams

Blackdown House, Border Road, 

Heathpark Industrial Estate, 

Honiton, EX14 1EJ 

DX 48808 Honiton 

Phone: 01395 516551 

Email: csc@eastdevon.gov.uk 

eastdevon.gov.uk 

@eastdevon 

Download the free East Devon App 

to access council services at 

eastdevon.gov.uk/app 

Date: 20th July 2021 

Phone: 01404 515616 

Direct email: licensing@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Our ref: 

Dear 

Premises: Hawkfest, Hills Farm, Whitford Road Kilmington EX13 7NS 

Application number: 052165 

As a result of representations received against the above application the Licensing Sub 

Committee will hold a hearing on 11th August 2021 at 9:30am. 

The Notice of Hearing documents and additional information are enclosed with this letter. 

Mediation 

The Licensing Act allows for mediation following relevant representations against an application, 

prior to a hearing, to explore whether the applicant and objectors can reach agreement, either 

by changes to the hours applied for, added conditions or other assurances. 

We have therefore been asked by the applicant to pass on the following information: 

1. The applicant has asked us to provide you with their proposed “Hawkfest 2021 noise

complaint procedure” which is enclosed with this letter and gives further information

regarding the proposed music noise levels at the event and a point of contact for any

noise complaints.

2. The Event Organiser has also asked us to pass on the following points.  Please note that

this information has been provided by the Event Organisers themselves and has not

been verified by the Licensing Authority:

PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL 

Sent to all objectors on 20th July 2021: 

APPENDIX H

page 117



 “I would like to reassure the licensing team and any objectors that the event is exactly as

described in the application – a camping weekend with music for the Hawkwind fan club,

not a cover for any other sort of activity, as there seems to be a misconception about the

nature of the event with some local residents.”

 “We have run this event twice before in East Devon, the first was 19th – 21st July 2002,

near Beer (field opposite The Three Horseshoes public house) and the second was 25th

– 27th July 2008 near Honiton.  We received no complaints from the authorities or

members of the public for either of these events and are confident that we can run this

event in the same manner.  We have also run the event in other parts of the country,

again, with no complaints.  In fact, the Isle of Wight authorities congratulated us on such

a well-run event and said we would be welcome back at any time.”

Please read the attached document and above information carefully. It may be that this 

information mitigates your concerns. Once you have had the opportunity to consider this 

information you have the following options: 

 If your concerns are mitigated and you therefore feel a hearing is un-necessary, you

have the option to withdraw your objection.

If you wish to withdraw your representation (and consider a hearing to be unnecessary)

please confirm by ticking this box to the right and signing below:

“I withdraw my representation and consider a hearing to be un-necessary”

…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

(please sign here) 

This letter may then be returned to the Licensing Manager, East Devon District Council, 

Blackdown House, Border Rd, Honiton EX14 1EJ. Alternatively a copy of this letter 

confirming your wish to withdraw may be scanned and emailed to 

licensing@eastdevon.gov.uk 

 If your concerns still stand and you wish your objection to remain in place, the matter will

proceed to a hearing before the Licensing Sub-Committee. The Notice of Hearing

documents and additional information are enclosed with this letter. If you wish the matter

to proceed to a hearing you will need to complete the attached Notice of Hearing

documents and summary of key points and return these to the Licensing Manager.

Due to the current Coronavirus restrictions the hearing cannot be held within the Council Offices 

but will instead be a virtual zoom hearing. Additional instructions to allow access to the zoom 

hearing will be forwarded to you along with the full committee report at a later date.  

If you have any query regarding the information contained in the Notice of Hearing please 

contact this department at licensing@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Yours sincerely 

Emily Westlake 

Licensing Officer 

APPENDIX H

page 118



page 119


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 7 July 2021
	6 Determination of an application for the grant of a premises licence to allow the provision of regulated entertainment, provision of late night refreshment and the sale of alcohol for consumption ON the premises at ‘Hawkfest’, Hills Farm, Whitford Road, Kilmington, EX13 7NS. The application is to cover the period of 26 – 30 August 2021
	110821 APPENDIX A -  Application_REDACTED
	110821 APPENDIX B - Plans
	Hills Farm Map3.pdf
	Hills Farm Aerial 3.pdf
	Steve Littley Passport.pdf

	110821 APPENDIX C - Conditions offered
	110821 APPENDIX D -  Event Management Plan V3 with supporting documents
	110821 APPENDIX E - Location Map and Photos
	APPENDIX E - Location Map and Photos.pdf
	APPENDIX E - Location Map and Photos 2.pdf
	APPENDIX E - Location Map and Photos 3.pdf
	APPENDIX E - Location Map and Photos 4.pdf
	APPENDIX E - Location Map and Photos 5.pdf
	APPENDIX E - Location Map and Photos 6.pdf

	110821 APPENDIX F - Reps List_REDACTED
	110821 APPENDIX G - Responses to Notice of Hearing
	110821 APPENDIX G1 Kilmington PC - A35 Accident Data
	110821 APPENDIX G2 Kilmington PC- A35 Average Annual Daily Traffic
	110821 APPENDIX H - NOH Mediation and noise letter_REDACTED




